
 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

Regular Meeting of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority 
 

Wednesday, September 11, 2019, 9:00 a.m. 
Utah Transit Authority Headquarters  

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 
Golden Spike Conference Rooms   

 
 

1. Call to Order & Opening Remarks Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
2. Pledge of Allegiance Chair Carlton Christensen 
   
3. Safety First Minute Sheldon Shaw 

   

4. Public Comment Period Bob Biles 

   

5. Approval of August 21, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes Chair Carlton Christensen 

    
6. Agency Report Carolyn Gonot 
 a. Government Finance Officers Association Award  
   
7. R2019-09-01 Resolution Appointing the Accountable 

Executive and Chief Safety Officer for the Authority’s Safety 
Management System 

Carolyn Gonot 

   
8. R2019-09-02 Resolution Approving a Fourth Amendment to 

the Authority’s 2019 Budget 
Bob Biles 

   
9. Service Choices Report Laura Hanson 
   
10. Contracts, Disbursements and Grants  
 a. Contract: Bond Underwriter (Bank of America Securities) Bob Biles 
 b. Contract: Bond Underwriter (Wells Fargo Securities) Bob Biles 
 c. Contract: Bond Underwriter (JP Morgan Securities) Bob Biles 
 d. Contract: Comprehensive Specialized Transportation 

Plan Development (RLS Associates, Inc.) 
Ryan Taylor 

 e. Contract: Vendor Managed Shop Supply (Grainger) Todd Mills 
 f. Change Order: On-Call Maintenance Task Order #87-

UDOT Queue Cutter Traffic Signal Project (Stacy & 
Witbeck) 

Dave Hancock 

 g. Pre-Procurement: Electronic Fare Collection Reader 
Replacement  

Carolyn Gonot 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride


 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

    
11. Discussion Items  
 a. Emergency Management Plans Amy Cornell-Titcomb 
    
12. Other Business Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Next meeting: September 18, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.  
    
13. Closed Session Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Strategy Session to Discuss Pending or Reasonably 

Imminent Litigation 
 

 b. Strategy Session to Discuss Collective Bargaining  
    
14. Adjourn Chair Carlton Christensen 
   

Public Comment: Members of the public are invited to provide comment during the public comment period. 
Comment may be provided in person or online through www.rideuta.com. In order to be considerate of time and 
the agenda, comments are limited to 2 minutes per individual or 5 minutes for a designated spokesperson 
representing a group. Comments may also be sent via e-mail to boardoftrustees@rideuta.com.   
 
Special Accommodation: Information related to this meeting is available in alternate format upon request by 
contacting calldredge@rideuta.com or (801) 287-3536. Request for accommodations should be made at least 
two business days in advance of the scheduled meeting. 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride
http://www.rideuta.com/
mailto:boardoftrustees@rideuta.com
mailto:calldredge@rideuta.com


Be Prepared, Not Scared

SMSM

SAFETY & SECURITYSAFETY & SECURITY
September 2019

SM



 

 

 

Board Members Present: 

Carlton Christensen, Chair  

Beth Holbrook 

Kent Millington 

 

Also attending were members of UTA staff, as well as interested citizens. 

 

 

Call to Order, Opening Remarks, and Pledge of Allegiance. Chair Christensen welcomed 

attendees and called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. Following Chair Christensen’s opening 

remarks, the board and meeting attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Safety First Minute. Chair Christensen yielded the floor to Sheldon Shaw, UTA Acting Manager 

of Safety & Security, for a brief safety message. 

 

Oath of Office – Executive Director Carolyn Gonot. The oath of office was administered to 

Carolyn Gonot, UTA Executive Director. 

 

Public Comment Period. Public comment was given by Michael Sheffield. Mr. Sheffield 

mentioned UTA’s service choices initiative and expressed support for transit planning that 

supports increased ridership. 

 

Approval of August 7, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes. A motion to approve the August 7, 2019 

Board Meeting Minutes was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by Trustee Holbrook. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

Agency Report. Ms. Gonot was joined by Eddy Cumins, UTA Chief Operating Officer. Ms. Gonot 

reported on her first few days of employment at the agency, including a visit to the Salt Lake 

Minutes of the Meeting 

of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

held at UTA FrontLines Headquarters located at 

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 

August 21, 2019 

, 

 



 

Service Unit bus pull-out on her first day and a customer meet-and-greet event on her second 

day.  

 

Mr. Cumins spoke about a bus purchase contract with Gillig, which was reduced from 45 buses 

to 10, with options for purchasing additional buses moved to future years. He noted the 

reduction came after internal analysis showed that the useful life of other buses already in the 

fleet could be extended. Brief discussion ensued. A question clarifying the availability of future 

options was posed by the board and answered by Mr. Cumins. 

 

Financial Report – July 2019. Bob Biles, UTA Chief Financial Officer, was joined by Mr. Cumins. 

Mr. Biles reviewed the July 2019 Financial Report, which included the financial dashboard, sales 

tax collections, taxable sales by supersectors, quarterly taxable sales growth, expense variance 

by mode, and expense variance by type. Discussion ensued. Questions on ridership numbers, 

manufacturing exemption, tax collections on internet sales, and parts expenses were posed by 

the board and answered by staff. 

R2019-08-04 Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Certification of Intent to Participate in 

the Volkswagen Environmental Mitigation Trust Funding Assistance Program for Replacement 

of Diesel Buses. Mary DeLoretto, UTA Acting Chief Service Development Officer, summarized 

the resolution, which authorizes execution of a notice of intent to proceed in securing funding 

from the Volkswagen Environmental Mitigation Trust Funding Assistance Program. UTA was 

notified it is eligible to receive funding of $13,079,240 for up to 20 vehicles. Discussion ensued. 

Questions on which vehicles will be replaced and at which locations were posed by the board 

and answered by Ms. DeLoretto. 

A motion to approve R2019-08-04 was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by Trustee 

Millington. The motion carried unanimously with aye votes from Trustee Holbrook, Trustee 

Millington, and Chair Christensen. 

Contracts, Disbursements, and Grants. 

Amendment 1 to Memorandum of Understanding with University of Utah for Union 

Building Bus Bays (University of Utah). Ms. DeLoretto was joined by Grey Turner, UTA 

Senior Program Manager for Engineering & Project Development. Ms. DeLoretto 

indicated the amendment to the memorandum of understanding reflects a cost increase 

of $200,293 to the original task order authorized at $399,400, with $200,000 of the cost 

increase being funded by the University of Utah. Discussion ensued. A question on the 

timeframe for completion of the project was posed by the board and answered by staff.  



 

A motion to approve the amendment was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Change Order: On-Call Maintenance Task Order #85 – University of Utah Union 

Building Bus Bay Improvements (Stacy and Witbeck). Ms. DeLoretto stated the change 

order includes a cost increase of $200,293 to the original task order. Discussion ensued. 

It was noted an adjustment on the final documents is needed, changing the signatory 

title from interim executive director to executive director.  

A motion to approve the change order was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Contract: Davis Salt Lake City Community Connector Bus Rapid Transit Project 

Engineering and Design Services (AECOM Technical Services). Ms. DeLoretto described 

the contract, which includes engineering, design, and environmental services for the 

Davis Salt Lake City Community Connector Bus Rapid Transit Project, and indicated costs 

for this portion of the project are covered by $1.2 million in funding from Davis County.  

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by 

Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Change Order: Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center Construction 

Manager/General Contractor Phase 2 Change Order 2. Ms. DeLoretto indicated the 

contract is for demolition and hazardous waste abatement of the locomotive building 

and breezeway connecting UTA headquarters. Discussion ensued. Questions on the 

project timeline, contractor, and utilities capping were posed by the board and 

answered by Ms. DeLoretto.  

A motion to approve the change order was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Contract: 2019 OnBoard Survey. Nichol Bourdeaux, UTA Chief Communications & 

Marketing Officer, stated the contract is for a passenger survey required every five years 

by Title VI regulations. The contract allows UTA to develop a demographic profile 

comparing minority and non-minority ridership patterns and fare medium usage. 

Discussion ensued. Questions on the timeline for survey results, integration of results 

with the August 2020 change day, modes included in the survey, and qualifications of 

the contractor were posed by the board and answered by Ms. Bourdeaux.  

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by 

Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 



 

Contract: Inventory Parts for a Light Rail Vehicle Pantograph Overhaul (Siemens). Mr. 

Cumins was joined by Kyle Stockley, UTA Manager of Vehicle Overhaul & Bus Support. 

Mr. Cumins described the contract, which details the procurement of inventory parts 

necessary to remanufacture the pantographs on all light rail vehicles. Discussion ensued. 

Questions on progress on the overhaul program and frequency of pantograph 

replacements were posed by the board and answered by staff.  

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by 

Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Contract: Light Rail Vehicle Coupler Quarter Life Overhaul Parts. Mr. Cumins was joined 

by Mr. Stockley. Mr. Cumins summarized the contract, which is for the procurement of 

necessary parts for UTA in-house mechanics to perform the quarter life overhaul on the 

couplers on 77 UTA S70 light rail vehicles. Discussion ensued. Questions on the 

availability of after-market suppliers and whether parts for this project are part of a joint 

purchase agreement with other transit agencies were posed by the board and answered 

by staff.  

A motion to approve the contract was made by Trustee Millington and seconded by 

Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Revenue Contract Amendment: Wheel Truing Services Provided by UTA (Sonoma-

Marin Area Rail Transit District). Mr. Cumins was joined by Jeff LaMora, UTA Light Rail 

General Manager. Mr. Cumins explained the amendment, which authorizes the 

continued provision of wheel truing services to the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 

District (SMART) through June 30, 2020. Discussion ensued. Questions on profit margin, 

considerations in pricing for the service, and whether wheel truing work is performed 

for transit agencies in addition to SMART were posed by the board and answered by 

staff. 

A motion to approve the revenue contract amendment was made by Trustee Holbrook 

and seconded by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Pre-Procurement: Bulk Fuel Purchase. Mr. Cumins stated the agency’s intent to 

contract with a bulk fuel provider at all UTA fuel-dispensing facilities. The procurement 

will allow UTA to assess whether fuel hedging is advantageous over time. Discussion 

ensued. A question on risks associated with fuel hedging was posed by the board and 

answered by staff. 

  



 

Service and Fare Approvals. 

Complimentary S-Line Service for Sugar House Backyard Bash Event August 31, 2019. 

Monica Morton, UTA Fares Director, indicated the complimentary fare on the S-Line 

would minimize local traffic and encourage new ridership during the Sugar House 

Backyard Bash event on August 31, 2019. She noted that in exchange for the 

complimentary service, UTA would receive a sponsorship marketing package. Discussion 

ensued. A question on the modes included in the complimentary service was posed by 

the board and answered by Ms. Morton. 

A motion to approve the complimentary service was made by Trustee Holbrook and 

seconded by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Complimentary Bus Service for Peach Days September 7, 2019. Ms. Morton was joined 

by Andres Colman, UTA Regional General Manager – Mt. Ogden Business Unit. Ms. 

Morton said the complimentary service, which is provided in partnership with Brigham 

City and Box Elder County, would provide shuttle service to more than 3,300 riders 

during Peach Days on September 7, 2019. Discussion ensued. Questions on the location 

of the shuttle and UTA marketing opportunities associated with the event were posed 

by the board and answered by staff. 

A motion to approve the complimentary service was made by Trustee Millington and 

seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously. 

Sponsored Fare by Salt Lake City for Routes 2, 9, and 21. Ms. Morton spoke about Salt 

Lake City’s desire to sponsor fares on routes with increased service (i.e., routes 2, 9, and 

21) to promote ridership. The value of the fare is estimated at $5,962 per day for all 

three routes. Discussion ensued. A question on the number of sponsored fare days 

being negotiated was posed by the board and answered by Ms. Morton. 

A motion to approve the sponsored fare was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded 

by Trustee Millington. The motion carried unanimously. 

Chair Christensen called for a brief recess at 10:06 a.m. 

The meeting resumed at 10:11 a.m. 

Discussion Items. 

Fourth Amendment of the Authority’s 2019 Budget (Operating Reallocation). Mr. Biles 

was joined by Ms. DeLoretto and Ms. Bourdeaux. Mr. Biles delivered a presentation 

outlining proposed budget reallocations including: 



 

 From Salt Lake County service ($1,110,800): 

o Project manager in capital development ($60,300) 

o Microtransit pilot ($925,000) 

o Two customer service positions ($50,100) 

o Customer service software ($50,000) 

o Bus operations training support specialist ($25,400) 

 Movement of one headcount from legal to supply chain for a procurement and 

contract specialist ($36,000) 

Discussion ensued. Questions on salaries and benefits, project manager responsibilities, 

purpose for increase in customer service headcount, customer service structure, and 

budget reallocations from legal were posed by the board and answered by staff. 

Insurance and Risk Management Report. Dave Pitcher, UTA Claims & Insurance 

Manager, provided a report on compliance to the board’s policy on risk management 

and described various types of insurance coverage carried by the agency. Discussion 

ensued. Questions on liability policies, self-insurance, bonding for facilities recovery 

necessitated by catastrophic events (e.g., earthquake), property valuation process, 

management of rideshare insurance at other agencies, and ERISA bonds were posed by 

the board and answered by Mr. Pitcher. Chair Christensen suggested evaluating the 

possibility of hiring rideshare drivers as part-time employees as part of an overall risk 

management strategy. Trustee Holbrook requested a future update on property and 

vanpool coverage. 

Other Business.  

Next Meeting. The next meeting of the board will be on Wednesday, August 28, 2019 at 

9:00 a.m. 

 

Closed Session. Chair Christensen stated there were matters to be discussed in closed session 

related to a strategy session to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property, 

including any form of a water right or water shares, if public discussion of the transaction would 

prevent the public body from completing the transaction on the best possible terms. A motion 

for a closed session was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by Trustee Millington. The 

motion carried unanimously and the board moved into closed session at 11:06 a.m. 

 

Open Session. A motion to return to open session was made by Trustee Millington and 

seconded by Trustee Holbrook. The motion carried unanimously and the board returned to 

open session at 12:00 p.m. 

 



 

Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 12:01 p.m. by motion. 

Transcribed by Cathie Griffiths 
Executive Assistant to the Board Chair 
Utah Transit Authority 
cgriffiths@rideuta.com  
801.237.1945 
 
This document is not intended to serve as a full transcript as additional discussion may have 
taken place; please refer to the meeting materials, audio, or video located at 
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/553217.html for entire content. 
 
This document along with the digital recording constitute the official minutes of this meeting. 
 

mailto:cgriffiths@rideuta.com
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/553217.html


  1 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY APPOINTING THE ACCOUNTABLE EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF SAFETY 

OFFICER FOR THE AUTHORITY’S SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
 
No. R2019-09-01 September 11, 2019 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a large public transit 
district organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local Government 
Entities- Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act (the “Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is also under the Regulation of the Federal Transit 
Administration (“FTA”); and  

 
WHEREAS, under an FTA regulation, specifically 49 C.F.R. § 673, the Authority 

must create a Safety Management System (“SMS”), an organization-wide, top-down 
approach to managing safety risk and assuring the effectiveness of the Authority’s safety 
risk mitigation; and 

 
WHEREAS, under an FTA regulation, specifically 49 C.F.R. § 673.23(d)(2), the 

Authority must designate a Chief Safety Officer who has the day-to-day responsibility for 
implementation and operation of the Authority’s SMS; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Chief Safety Officer must have a direct line of reporting to the 

Authority’s accountable executive; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority, in compliance with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. § 

673.23(d)(1), wishes to name the Executive Director, Carolyn Gonot as the Accountable 
Executive for the Authority’s SMS; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority, wishes to designate Sheldon Shaw, currently serving 

as the Acting Manager of Safety and Security as the Authority’s Chief Safety Officer, with 
a direct line of report to the Authority’s Executive Director; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority recognizes that a direct line of reporting exists between 

the Chief Safety Officer and the Accountable Executive, in compliance with 49 C.F.R. § 
673.23(d)(2). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Utah 
Transit Authority: 
 
1. That the Board hereby appoints Carolyn Gonot, the Executive Director as the 

accountable executive, within the meaning of 49 C.F.R. § 673.23(d)(1). 
 
 



  2 

2. That the Board hereby appoints Sheldon Shaw, currently the Acting Manager of 
Safety and Security as the Chief Safety Officer of the Authority, within the meaning 
of 49 C.F.R. § 673.23(d)(2). 
 

3. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions taken by the Authority’s 
Executive Director, and staff in furtherance of and effectuating the intent of this 
Resolution. 
 

4. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
 
Approved and adopted this 11th day of September 2019. 
 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 

         (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 



 1 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY APPROVING A FOURTH AMENDMENT  

OF THE AUTHORITY’S 2019 BUDGET 
 

 
No. R2019-09-02 September 11, 2019 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a large public transit 
district organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local Government 
Entities - Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Authority is charged by the State of Utah 
with the responsibility to establish the Authority’s annual budget;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees adopted the Authority’s 2019 Budget on 
December 12, 2018 in Resolution No. R2018-12-01 and re-adopted the Authority’s 2019 
Budget on January 30, 2019 in Resolution No. R2019-01-05;  
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees may amend the Authority’s budget to 
accommodate changes to its total budget or changes in the function or purpose of 
budgeted funds;  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has previously amended the Authority’s 2019 
Budget on June 19, 2019 in Resolution No. R2019-06-02, on July 31, 2019 in Resolution 
No. R2019-07-05, and on July 31, 2019 in Resolution No. R2019-07-06; 
 
 WHEREAS, reallocations of the 2019 Budget are necessary from the Salt Lake 
County service account for the addition of one Capital Development Project Manager, two 
Customer Service positions, customer service support software, one Bus Operations 
Training Support Specialist, and costs related to a new micro transit pilot program and 
associated promotional costs; 
 
 WHEREAS, reallocation of the 2019 Budget is necessary to add one Procurement 
and Contract Specialist in the Supply Chain department and reduce one position in the 
Legal department; 
 

WHEREAS, these reallocation changes necessitate an amendment of the 
Authority’s 2019 Budget;  
  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to amend the Authority’s 2019 Budget 
as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Utah 
Transit Authority: 
 
1. That the Board of Trustees hereby adopts the Fourth Amendment of the Authority’s 

2019 Budget attached as Exhibit A. 
 
2. That the corporate seal be attached hereto. 
 
Approved and adopted this 11th day of September 2019. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 

         (Corporate Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 
 
  



 3 

Exhibit A 



Exhibit A

Revenue

2019 Amended 

Budget               

July 31, 2019

Capital 

Development 

Project Manager  Micro Transit Pilot

Customer Service 

position

Bus Operations 

Training Support 

Specialist

Procurement & 

Contracts 

Specialist Position

2019 Amended 

Budget               

September 11, 2019

1 Sales Tax 308,861,000$       308,861,000$          

2 Federal Preventative Maintenance 66,188,000            66,188,000              

3 Passenger Revenue 53,420,000            53,420,000              

4 Advertising 2,467,000              2,467,000                 

5 Investment Income 8,582,000              8,582,000                 

6 Other Revenues 3,933,000              3,933,000                 

7 Salt Lake City 3,468,649              3,468,649                 

8 Salt Lake County (S-Line) 500,000                 500,000                    

9 Utah County 1,670,000              1,670,000                 

10 Motor Vehicle Registration to UDOT 2,400,000              2,400,000                 

11 Total Revenue 451,489,649          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          451,489,649            

Operating Expense

12 Bus 104,572,517          104,572,517            

13 Commuter Rail 29,168,782            29,168,782              

14 Light Rail 50,048,000            50,048,000              

15 Paratransit Service 23,085,277            23,085,277              

16 Rideshare/Vanpool 3,541,000              3,541,000                 

17 Operations Support 48,576,676            100,100                 25,400                   36,000                   48,738,176              

18 General & Administrative 34,328,342            925,000                 (36,000)                  35,217,342              

19 Salt Lake City service -                          -                            

20 Salt Lake County service 5,479,000              (60,300)                  (925,000)                (100,100)                (25,400)                  4,368,200                 

21 Total Operating Expense 298,799,594          (60,300)                  -                          -                          -                          -                          298,739,294            

Non-Operating Expense

22 Planning/Real Estate/TOD/Major Program Development 5,687,737              60,300                   5,748,037                 

23 Total Non-operating Expense 5,687,737              60,300                   -                          -                          -                          -                          5,748,037                 

Debt Service

24 Principal and Interest 121,678,000          121,678,000            

25 Contribution to Early Debt Retirement Reserve 23,403,318            23,403,318              

26 Contribution to Reserves 1,921,000              1,921,000                 

27 Total Debt Service and Reserves 147,002,318          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          147,002,318            

28 Total Expense 451,489,649$       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        451,489,649$          

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY

2019 Budget - Fourth Amendment - Operating

September 11, 2019



2019 Budget Amendment #4 
Detailed Operating Budget Reallocation Information 

 
 

1. Reallocation from Salt Lake County Service to Non-operating for the addition of one position 
($60,300).  Adds a Project Manager position in the Capital Development department to assist 
with additional capital work being funded through the Salt Lake County fourth-quarter sales 
tax. 
 
 

2. Reallocation from Salt Lake County Service to Innovative Mobility Services ($925,000).  
Transfers $925,000 from Salt Lake County service to Innovative Mobility Services for the micro 
transit pilot program.  These funds will cover the costs of the micro transit service ($800,000) in 
2019 as well as promotional work ($125,000).   
 

 
3. Reallocation from Salt Lake County Service to Customer Service for the addition of two 

position ($100,100).  Adds two Customer Service positions ($50,100) and customer service 
support software ($50,000) which provides text/email to customers who opt-in to specific route 
information. 
 
 

4. Reallocation from Salt Lake County Service to Culture and Talent Development for the 
addition of one Bus Operations Training Support Specialist ($25,400).  Adds one position to 
handle administrative duties so that the three trainers can focus more of their time on training 
to meet a 20% increase in the number of annual trainees. 
 
 

5. Reallocation from Legal to Supply Chain – Purchasing for the addition of one Procurement & 
Contracts Specialist position ($36,000).  As part of the realignment of work previously 
performed by UTA’s legal counsel, the Attorney General’s Office and UTA agreed that 
administrative work associated with contracts would be transferred to UTA’s Supply Chain 
Office.  This reallocation moves one headcount from Legal to Supply Chain.  
 



Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)* Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Supply Chain Yes 19-03036

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Contract

Original

6671

19-03036-3TP BAML Final Contract for

signatures.pdf
262.07KB

Bond Underwriter BofAML.DOCX 14.41KB

Bond Underwriters Bank of America (BOFA) Securities

Bank of America Securities

This is a contract between UTA and BOFA Securities, Inc. for Bond Underwriting
services for the issuance of any new money bonds as well as refundings
associated with outstanding bonds. Bank of America is one of three bond
underwriting firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming
bond issues. Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of
the firms to achieve the lowest true interest rate. Fees for Bank of America (see
the attached memo) are based upon the type and size of the bond issue. Present
plans are for a $69.6 million new bond issue. Due to lower interest rates, a
refunding may be possible.

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond
issues providing input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing
tools or strategies that may benefit UTA, and disclosure requirements. Their
services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the issue is priced at
prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to
underwrite unsold balances, and executing the bond sale.

Bond underwriting fees are a cost of the bond issuance and are paid from the
bond proceeds.

Pickett, Teressa Diaz, Emily

Beginning

9/11/2019
Ending

7/30/2024
SERVICES RFP

11

58 0
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement



Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*
Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

0.00$ 0.00$ 796,135.00$
$ 796,135.00$

One-time Recurring

Yes No

9900.5510
1.xxxx

Local
Yes

No

1,000,000.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No Bingham, Troy

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Diaz, Emily Biles, Robert

Biles, Robert Meyer, William Steven

Print this page



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
1 

UTA CONTRACT NO. 19-03036-3TP 

MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Bond Underwriting Services 

This Master Professional Services Agreement is entered into and made effective as of the 
11th day of September, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between UTAH 
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a public transit district organized under the laws of the 
State of Utah (“UTA”), and BOFA SECURITIES, INC., a Delaware Corporation 
(“Consultant”). RECITALS 

A. UTA desires to hire one or more professional service providers for qualified
underwriting services to prepare and market future bonds. 

B. On April 25, 2019, UTA issued Request for Proposal Package Number 19-
03036TP (“RFP”) encouraging interested parties to submit proposals to perform the services 
described in the RFP. 

C. Upon evaluation of the proposals submitted in response to the RFP, UTA
selected Consultant as one of the preferred entities with whom to negotiate a contract to 
perform the Work. 

D. Consultant is qualified and willing to perform the Work as set forth in the Scope
of Services. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the foregoing Recitals, which are 
incorporated herein by reference, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements hereafter set forth, the mutual benefits to the parties to be derived herefrom, and 
for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties 
acknowledge, it is hereby agreed as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.0 
Definitions 

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

1.1 The term “Change Order” shall mean a written modification to this Contract (the form of 
which shall be prescribed by UTA) pursuant to which the parties shall mutually agree upon 
and effect any additions, deletions, or variations in the Work (as such Work is initially 
defined by this Contract). The scope of modifications may include, without limitation, 
changes in the: (i) consideration paid to Consultant, (ii) deliverables required to be 
furnished by Consultant; (iii) method, manner or scope of the Work; or (iv) required 
performance completion milestones or other Contract schedule requirements. 

1.2 The term “Claims” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.1 of this Contract. 

1.3 The term “Consultant’s Project Manager” shall mean Jim Calpin, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by Consultant. 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

2 

1.4 The term “Consultant’s Proposal” shall mean the BofA Securities, Inc. Proposal dated 
May 16, 2019.  

1.5 The term “Contract” shall mean this Professional Services Agreement (inclusive of 
amendments and Change Orders hereto), together with all attached exhibits, all 
documents incorporated by reference pursuant to Article 26 hereof, and all drawings, 
reports, studies, industry standards, legal requirements and other items referenced in the 
foregoing documents. 

1.6 The term “Indemnitees” shall mean the UTA parties set forth in Section 16.1 of this 
Contract. 

1.7 The term “Master Professional Services Agreement” (“PSA”) shall mean the general 
contract between the Parties containing general terms and conditions and a general 
statement of work. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by a Master 
Professional Services Agreement.  

1.8 The term “Scope of Services” shall mean the services described in or reasonably implied 
by this Contract including, but not limited to, Exhibit “A” (and all Contract requirements 
associated with such services). 

1.9 The term “Task Order” refers to the specific order for underwriting services associated 
with a specific project. The Task Order shall contain the detailed description of services 
for the project and the authorized funding for the project. 

1.10 The term “UTA’s Project Manager” shall mean Emily Diaz, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by UTA. 

1.11 The term “Work” shall mean any activities undertaken or required to be undertaken by 
Consultant in conjunction with the Scope of Services or Contract. 

ARTICLE 2.0 
Description of Services 

2.1 Consultant shall be willing and capable to perform all Work as set forth in the Scope of 
Services. Except for items (if any) which this Contract specifically states will be UTA-
provided, Consultant shall furnish all the labor, material and incidentals necessary for the 
Work.  However, individual task orders will be issued for specific underwriting projects 
under this Agreement. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by this master 
agreement. Each task order will contain an authority to proceed for the specific underwriting 
project. 

2.2 Consultant shall perform all Work under this Contract in a professional manner, using at 
least that standard of care, skill and judgment which can reasonably be expected from 
similarly situated professionals.  

2.3 All Work shall conform to generally accepted standards in the transit industry. Consultant 
shall perform all Work in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
ordinances, permit constraints and other legal requirements including, without limitation, 
those related to safety and environmental protection.  

2.4 Consultant shall furnish only qualified personnel and materials necessary for the 
performance of the Work. 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

3 

2.5 When performing Work on UTA property, Consultant shall comply with all UTA work 
site rules including, without limitation, those related to safety and environmental 
protection. 

ARTICLE 3.0 
Day-to-Day Management of the Work 

3.1 Consultant’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for Consultant and 
will be responsible for all Work, as well as the coordination of such Work with UTA. 

3.2 UTA’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for UTA, and shall act as 
the liaison between UTA and Consultant with respect to the Work. UTA's Project Manager 
shall also coordinate any design reviews, approvals or other direction required from UTA 
with respect to the Work. 

ARTICLE 4.0 
Progress of the Work 

4.1 Consultant shall prosecute the Work in a diligent and continuous manner and in accordance 
with all applicable notice to proceed, critical path schedule and guaranteed completion date 
requirements set forth in (or developed and agreed by the parties in accordance with) the 
Scope of Services.  

4.2 Consultant shall conduct regular meetings to update UTA's Project Manager regarding 
the progress of the Work including, but not limited to, any unusual conditions or critical 
path schedule items that could affect or delay the Work. Such meetings shall be held at 
intervals mutually agreed to between the parties. 

4.3 Consultant shall deliver monthly progress reports and provide all Contract submittals and 
other deliverables as specified in the Scope of Services. 

4.4 Any drawing or other submittal reviews to be performed by UTA in accordance with the 
Scope of Services are for the sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its 
responsibility to comply with the Contract requirements. 

4.5 UTA will have the right to inspect, monitor and review any Work performed by Consultant 
hereunder as deemed necessary by UTA to verify that such Work conforms to the Contract 
requirements. Any such inspection, monitoring and review performed by UTA is for the 
sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its responsibility to comply with 
the Contract requirements. 

4.6 UTA shall have the right to reject Work which fails to conform to the requirements of 
this Contract. Upon receipt of notice of rejection from UTA, Consultant shall (at its sole 
expense and without entitlement to equitable schedule relief) promptly re-perform, 
replace or re-execute the Work so as to conform to the Contract requirements.  

4.7 If Consultant fails to promptly remedy rejected Work as provided in Section 4.6, UTA 
may (without limiting or waiving any rights or remedies it may have) perform necessary 
corrective action using other contractors or UTA’s own forces. Any costs reasonably 
incurred by UTA in such corrective action shall be chargeable to Consultant.  

ARTICLE 5.0 
Period of Performance 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

4 

5.1 This Contract shall commence as of the Effective Date. This Contract shall remain in full 
force and effect until all Task Orders have been completed.  All Task Orders shall be 
awarded on or before July 30, 2024. This guaranteed completion date may be extended if 
Consultant and UTA mutually agree to an extension evidenced by a written Change Order. 
The rights and obligations of UTA and Consultant under this Contract shall at all times be 
subject to and conditioned upon the provisions of this Contract. 

5.2 UTA will use best efforts to provide Task Order awards to each awardee, however there 
is no guarantee for the award of any minimum number of task orders to any particular 
awardee under this Agreement.   

ARTICLE 6.0  
Consideration 

6.1 For the performance of the Work, UTA shall pay Consultant in accordance with Exhibit 
B. Payments shall be made in accordance with the milestones or other payment provisions 
detailed in Exhibit B. If Exhibit B does not specify any milestones or other payment 
provisions, then payment shall be made upon completion of all Work and final 
acceptance thereof by UTA. 

6.2 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a cost-reimbursement basis, such costs shall only be 
reimbursable to the extent allowed under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E. Compliance with 
federal cost principles shall apply regardless of funding source for this Contract. 

6.3 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a time and materials or labor hour basis, then Consultant 
must refer to the not-to-exceed amount, maximum Contract amount, Contract budget 
amount or similar designation (any of these generically referred to as the “Not to Exceed 
Amount”) specified in Exhibit B (as applicable). Unless and until UTA has notified 
Consultant by written instrument designated or indicated to be a Change Order that the 
Not to Exceed Amount has been increased (which notice shall specify a revised Not to 
Exceed Amount): (i) Consultant shall not be obligated to perform services or incur costs 
which would cause its total compensation under this Contract to exceed the Not to 
Exceed Amount; and (ii) UTA shall not be obligated to make payments which would 
cause the total compensation paid to Consultant to exceed the Not to Exceed Amount. 

6.4 UTA may withhold and/or offset from payment any amounts reasonably reflecting: (i) 
items of Work that have been rejected by UTA in accordance with this Contract; (ii) 
invoiced items that are not payable under this Contract; or (iii) amounts Consultant owes 
to UTA under this Contract.  

ARTICLE 7.0 
Contract Changes 

7.1 UTA’s Project Manager or designee may, at any time, by written order designated or 
indicated to be a Change Order, direct changes in the Work including, but not limited 
to, changes: 

A. In the Scope of Services; 

B. In the method or manner of performance of the Work; or 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

5 

C. In the schedule or completion dates applicable to the Work. 

To the extent that any change in Work directed by UTA causes an actual and 
demonstrable impact to: (i) Consultant’s cost of performing the work; or (ii) the time 
required for the Work, then (in either case) the Change Order shall include an equitable 
adjustment to this Contract to make Consultant whole with respect to the impacts of such 
change. 

7.2 A change in the Work may only be directed by UTA through a written Change Order or 
(alternatively) UTA’s expressed, written authorization directing Consultant to proceed 
pending negotiation of a Change Order. Any changes to this Contract undertaken by 
Consultant without such written authority shall be at Consultant’s sole risk. Consultant 
shall not be entitled to rely on any other manner or method of direction. 

7.3 Consultant shall also be entitled to an equitable adjustment to address the actual and 
demonstrable impacts of “constructive” changes in the Work if: (i) subsequent to the 
Effective Date of this Contract, there is a material change with respect to any law or other 
requirement set forth in this Contract; or (ii) other conditions exist which materially modify 
the magnitude, character or complexity of the Work from what should have been 
reasonably assumed by Consultant based on the information included in (or referenced by) 
this Contract. In order to be eligible for equitable relief for “constructive” changes in Work, 
Consultant must give UTA’s Project Manager or designee written notice stating: 

A. The date, circumstances, and source of the change; and 

B. That Consultant regards the identified item as a change in Work giving rise to an 
adjustment in this Contract.  

Consultant must provide notice of a “constructive” change and assert its right to an 
equitable adjustment under this Section within ten (10) days after Consultant becomes 
aware (or reasonably should have become aware) of the facts and circumstances giving 
rise to the “constructive” change. Consultant’s failure to provide timely written notice as 
provided above shall constitute a waiver of Consultant’s rights with respect to such claim.  

7.4 As soon as practicable, Consultant must provide UTA with information and documentation 
reasonably demonstrating the actual cost and schedule impacts associated with any change 
in Work compensable under Section 7.1 or 7.3. Equitable adjustments will be made via 
Change Order. Any dispute regarding the Consultant’s entitlement to an equitable 
adjustment (or the extent of any such equitable adjustment) shall be resolved in 
accordance with Article 20 of this Contract.  

ARTICLE 8.0 
Invoicing Procedures and Records 

8.1   N/A BofA Securities does not issue invoices. 

ARTICLE 9.0 
Ownership of Materials 

9.1 All data including, but not limited to, maps, drawings, sketches, renderings, software, 
hardware, and specifications, including the original thereof, developed by Consultant as a 
part of its Work under this Contract (collectively and generically referred to in this Article 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

6 

as “Work Product”) are the property of UTA. All Work Product must be delivered to UTA 
no later than the completion of the Work and prior to final payment by UTA. In the event 
this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the Work, then Consultant shall transmit 
all Work Product completed or in-process as of the date of termination.  

9.2 UTA shall not be construed to be the owner of any intellectual property contained in the 
Work Product that was owned or created by Consultant outside of the scope of this Contract. 
However, with respect to such intellectual property of Consultant, Consultant hereby grants 
UTA a non-exclusive perpetual license to use such intellectual property to the full extent 
reasonably necessary for UTA’s use and enjoyment of the Work Product furnished under 
this Contract.  

ARTICLE 10.0 
Subcontracts 

10.1 Consultant shall give advance written notification to UTA of any proposed subcontract 
(not indicated in Consultant’s Proposal) negotiated with respect to the Work. UTA shall 
have the right to approve all subcontractors, such approval not to be withheld unreasonably. 

10.2 No subsequent change, removal or substitution shall be made with respect to any such 
subcontractor without the prior written approval of UTA. 

10.3 Consultant shall be solely responsible for making payments to subcontractors, and such 
payments shall be made within thirty (30) days after Consultant receives corresponding 
payments from UTA. 

10.4 Consultant shall be responsible for and direct all Work performed by subcontractors.  

10.5 Consultant agrees that no subcontracts shall provide for payment on a cost-plus-
percentage-of-cost basis. Consultant further agrees that all subcontracts shall comply with 
all applicable laws. 

ARTICLE 11.0  
Key Personnel 

11.1 Consultant shall provide the key personnel as indicated in Consultant’s Proposal (or other 
applicable provisions of this Contract), and shall not change any of said key personnel 
without the express written consent of UTA. 

ARTICLE 12.0 
Suspension of Work 

12.1 UTA may, at any time, by written order to Consultant, require Consultant to suspend, 
delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work called for by this Contract. Any such order 
shall be specifically identified as a “Suspension of Work Order” issued pursuant to 
this Article. Upon receipt of such an order, Consultant shall immediately comply with its 
terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of further costs allocable to 
the Work covered by the order during the period of Work stoppage. 

12.2 If a Suspension of Work Order issued under this Article is canceled, Consultant shall 
resume Work as mutually agreed to in writing by the parties hereto. 

12.3 If a Suspension of Work Order is not canceled and the Work covered by such order is 
terminated for the convenience of UTA, reasonable costs incurred as a result of the 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

7 

Suspension of Work Order shall be considered in negotiating the termination settlement. 

12.4 If the Suspension of Work causes an increase in Consultant’s cost or time to perform the 
Work, UTA’s Project Manager or designee shall make an equitable adjustment to 
compensate Consultant for the additional costs or time, and modify this Contract by 
Change Order. 

ARTICLE 13.0 
Termination for Convenience; Termination for Cause and Default Remedies 

13.1 UTA shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time by providing written 
notice to Consultant. If this Contract is terminated for convenience, UTA shall pay 
Consultant its costs and a reasonable profit on work performed up to the effective date of the 
termination notice, plus costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by Consultant to effect 
such termination. UTA shall not be responsible for anticipated profits based on Work not 
performed as of the effective date of termination.  Consultant shall promptly submit a 
termination claim to UTA. If Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to 
UTA, Consultant will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. 

13.2 If Consultant materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, and 
such failure is not cured or a cure initiated to the satisfaction of UTA within ten (10) days 
after receipt of written notice from UTA, UTA may, at its discretion: 

A. Terminate this Contract (in whole or in part) for default and complete the Work 
using other contractors or UTA’s own forces, in which event Consultant shall be 
liable for all incremental costs so incurred by UTA; 

B. Pursue other remedies available under this Contract (regardless of whether the 
termination remedy is invoked); and/or 

C. Except to the extent limited by this Contract, pursue other remedies available at 
law.  

Upon receipt of a termination notice as provided above, Consultant shall (i) immediately 
discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); (ii) deliver to UTA 
all data, drawings and other deliverables, whether completed or in process; and (iii) if 
Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to UTA, account for the same, 
and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. Consultant shall remit a final invoice for all 
services performed and expenses incurred in full accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Contract up to the effective date of termination. UTA shall calculate termination 
damages payable under this Contract, shall offset such damages against Consultant’s 
final invoice, and shall invoice Consultant for any additional amounts payable by 
Consultant (to the extent termination damages exceed the invoice). All rights and 
remedies provided in this Article are cumulative and not exclusive. 

13.3 If UTA terminates this Contract for any reason, Consultant shall remain available, for a 
period not exceeding 90 days, to UTA to respond to any questions or concerns that UTA 
may have regarding the Work completed by Consultant prior to termination.   

ARTICLE 14.0 
Information, Records, and Reports; Audit Rights 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
8 

14.1 Consultant shall retain all books, papers, documents, accounting records and other 
evidence to support any cost-based billings allowable under Exhibit B (or any other 
provision of this Contract). Such records shall include, without limitation, time sheets 
and other cost documentation related to the performance of labor services, as well as 
subcontracts, purchase orders, other contract documents, invoices, receipts or other 
documentation supporting non-labor costs. Consultant shall also retain other books and 
records related to the performance, quality or management of this Contract and/or 
Consultant’s compliance with this Contract. Records shall be retained by Consultant for 
a period of at least six (6) years after completion of the Work, or until any audit initiated 
within that six-year period has been completed (whichever is later), subject to applicable 
law, rule and regulation and Consultant’s internal record retention policies. During this 
period, such records shall be made available at all reasonable times and upon at least 10 
days’ notice for audit and inspection by UTA and other authorized auditing parties 
including, but not limited to, the Federal Transit Administration. Copies of requested 
records shall be furnished to UTA or designated audit parties upon request. Consultant 
agrees that it shall flow-down (as a matter of written contract) these records requirements 
to all subcontractors utilized in the performance of the Work at any tier. 

ARTICLE 15.0 
Findings Confidential 

15.1 Any documents, reports, information, or other data and materials available to or prepared 
or assembled by Consultant or subcontractors under this Contract are considered 
confidential and shall not be made available to any person, organization, or entity by 
Consultant without consent in writing from UTA.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Consultant may disclose proprietary or confidential information to its affiliates and its 
and their respective employees, officers, directors, agents, legal counsel, accountants, 
auditors and other representatives and advisors (collectively, its “Representatives”) who 
are informed of the confidential nature of the proprietary or confidential information and 
are directed to treat the proprietary or confidential information in a manner consistent 
with the terms of this Contract.    

15.2 It is hereby agreed that the following information is not considered to be confidential: 

A. Information already in the public domain;

B. Information disclosed to Consultant by a third party who is not known to the
Consultant or its Representatives to be prohibited from disclosing the information
to the Consultant or its Representatives by a contractual, legal or fiduciary
obligation to UTA;

C. Information developed by or in the custody of Consultant before entering into this
Contract;

D. Information developed by Consultant through its work with other clients; and

E. Information requested or required to be disclosed by a court order, law, regulation
or interrogatory, request for information or documents, subpoena, deposition,
administrative proceeding, inspection, audit, civil investigative demand or other
legal, governmental or regulatory process.



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

9 

ARTICLE 16.0 
General Indemnification and Insurance  

16.1 The proposed indemnification provisions in this Section 16.1 are not standard in 
agreements entered into in connection with serving as an underwriter for an offering of 
municipal securities.  The Consultant expects to enter into a mutually acceptable bond 
purchase agreement with UTA for any series of bonds for which UTA might request 
Consultant to serve as underwriter.  Consultant can only agree to any indemnification 
provisions that are negotiated in connection with any such bond purchase agreement. 

16.2 For the duration of this Contract, Consultant shall maintain at its own expense, and 
provide proof of said insurance to UTA, the following types of insurance: 

A. Occurrence type Commercial General Liability Insurance ISO CG001, with an 
edition date of 11-88 or later, covering the indemnity and other liability 
provisions of this Contract, with no exclusions of explosion, collapse or 
underground hazards. The limits shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence with an 
annual aggregate of $2,000,000. The policy shall be endorsed to include the 
following additional insured language: "The Utah Transit Authority shall be named 
as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities 
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including completed operations." 

 
Bank of America maintains Commercial General Liability coverage 
(including Bodily Injury & Property Damage, Personal & Advertising 
Injury, Products & Completed Operations, and Contractual Liability) with 
limits of $2,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate.  

 
Upon acceptance and award of the contract, Bank of America will issue a 
certificate of insurance evidencing Utah Transit Authority shall be named as 
an additional insured with respect to Commercial General Liability as 
required by written contract.   

B. Professional Liability insurance with the following limits and coverages: 

Minimum Limits:  

$1,000,000 each claim 

$2,000,000 annual aggregate  

Coverages: 

1. Insured's interest in joint ventures 

2. Punitive damages coverage (where not prohibited by law) 

3. Limited contractual liability 

4. Retroactive date prior to date 

5. Extended reporting period of 36 months 

Coverage which meets or exceeds the minimum requirements will be 
maintained, purchased annually in full force and effect until 3 years past 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

10 

completion of the Work unless such coverage becomes unavailable to the market 
on a commercially reasonable basis, in which case Consultant will notify UTA. 
If UTA agrees that such coverage is not reasonably available in the commercial 
market, Consultant may elect not to provide such coverage. 
 
Bank of America maintains Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) 
insurance on a claims-made basis providing coverage for loss or damage due 
to an act, error, omission, or negligence of Bank of America employees with 
a primary limit of $25,000,000.     

 
Bank of America’s insurance policies are written annually, thus eliminating 
the need to obtain an extended reporting provision to include run-off 
coverage or retroactive dates.  Although it is Bank of America’s intent to 
renew all coverages as required in this contract, the Bank reserves the right 
to self-insure any lines of coverage. 

C. Automobile insurance covering owned, if any, non-owned, and hired automobile 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit of coverage. The policy 
shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The Utah 
Transit Authority shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability 
arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including 
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor.” 

 
Bank of America maintains Automobile Liability insurance with a limit of 
$2,000,000 per accident.          

D. Workers' Compensation insurance conforming to the appropriate states' statutory 
requirements covering all employees of Consultant, and any employees of its 
subcontractors, representatives, or agents as long as they are engaged in the work 
covered by this Contract or such subcontractors, representatives, or agents shall 
provide evidence of their own Worker's Compensation insurance. The policy 
shall also cover Employers Liability with limits no less than $500,000 each 
accident, and each employee for disease. The policy shall contain a waiver of 
subrogation against UTA. 

 
Bank of America maintains Workers’ Compensation coverage in compliance 
with all statutory requirements. 
 
Bank of America maintains Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$1,000,000 each accident or disease/$1,000,000 
aggregate. 
 
Subrogation will be waived except with respect to Workers’ Compensation 
insurance. 

16.3 On insurance policies where UTA is named as an additional insured, UTA shall be an 
additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Consultant. Insurance 
limits indicated in this agreement are minimum limits.  Larger limits may be indicated 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

11 

after Consultant’s assessment of the exposure for this contract; for its own protection and 
the protection of UTA. Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and 
non-contributory with respect to all other available sources. 

 
Any insurance required of Bank of America should be determined at contract 
execution. 

 
Bank of America’s General Liability and Auto Liability include a blanket 
additional insured provision for any entity required by contract or agreement to be 
an additional insured.  Due to the size of Bank of America, we cannot provide 
individual additional insured endorsements or riders.  The Certificate of Insurance 
will evidence Utah Transit Authority as additional insured as required by written 
contract. 

 
Bank of America's insurance policies are primary and non-contributory to Utah 
Transit Authority’s insurance policies only as it relates to the bank’s own 
negligence arising out of the bank’s performance of services and rights and 
obligations under this agreement.    

16.4 Consultant warrants that this Contract has been thoroughly reviewed by its insurance 
agent, broker or consultant, and that said agent/broker/ consultant has been instructed to 
procure for Consultant the insurance coverage and endorsements required herein. 

 
Bank of America will endeavor maintain insurance coverages requested herein 
and the right to cover under a self-insurance program.    

16.5 Consultant shall furnish UTA with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent 
approved by UTA) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance 
policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf. All certificates and any required endorsements are to be received and approved 
by UTA before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must 
be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect 
for the duration of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by 
this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract.  

Bank of America will furnish certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage 
referenced herein. 

Bank of America will furnish Certificate of Insurance prior to contract and at renewal.  

Bank of America will endeavor to provide thirty (30) days written notice upon 
termination or modification of coverage.  Failure to provide such notice shall impose no 
obligation or liability of any kind upon Bank of America, its agents or representatives. 

16.6 UTA, as a self-insured governmental entity, shall not be required to provide insurance 
coverage for the risk of loss to UTA premises and improvements or equipment owned by 
UTA. 

  

 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
12 

ARTICLE 17.0 
Other Indemnities 

17.1 The proposed indemnification provisions in this Section 17.1 are not standard in 
agreements entered into in connection with serving as an underwriter for an offering of 
municipal securities.  The Consultant expects to enter into a mutually acceptable bond 
purchase agreement with UTA for any series of bonds for which UTA might request 
Consultant to serve as underwriter.  Consultant can only agree to any indemnification 
provisions that are negotiated in connection with any such bond purchase agreement. 

17.2 .  The proposed indemnification provisions in this Section 17.2 are not standard in 
agreements entered into in connection with serving as an underwriter for an offering of 
municipal securities.  The Consultant expects to enter into a mutually acceptable bond 
purchase agreement with UTA for any series of bonds for which UTA might request 
Consultant to serve as underwriter.  Consultant can only agree to any indemnification 
provisions that are negotiated in connection with any such bond purchase agreement. 

ARTICLE 18.0 
Independent Contractor 

18.1 Consultant is an independent contractor and agrees that its personnel will not represent 
themselves as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of UTA by reason of this Contract. 
Consultant is responsible to provide and pay the cost of all its employees' benefits. 

ARTICLE 19.0 
Prohibited Interest 

19.1 No member, officer, agent, or employee of UTA during his or her tenure or for one year 
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, including prospective employment by 
Consultant in this Contract or the proceeds thereof without specific written authorization 
by UTA. 

ARTICLE 20.0 
Dispute Resolution 

20.1 The parties shall attempt to informally resolve all claims, counterclaims and other 
disputes through the escalation process described below. No party may bring a legal 
action to enforce any term of this Contract without first having exhausted such process. 

20.2 The time schedule for escalation of disputes, including disputed requests for Change 
Order, shall be as follows: 

Level of Authority    Time Limit 
UTA’s Project Manager/Consultant’s Project Manager Five calendar days 

UTA’s Chief Financial Officer/Head of Public Finance Banking Five calendar days 

UTA’s Executive Director/Head of Municipal Markets Five calendar days 
Unless otherwise directed by UTA’s Project Manager, Consultant shall diligently 
continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

13 

20.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved informally in accordance with the escalation procedures 
set forth above, than either party may commence legal action in accordance with the 
venue and law provisions of this Contract. If mutually agreed, the parties may also submit 
the dispute to arbitration or mediation. 

ARTICLE 21 
Successors and Assignees 

21.1 Consultant shall not assign, sublet, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any interest 
in this Contract without prior written approval of UTA, and any attempted transfer in 
violation of this restriction shall be void. 

ARTICLE 22.0 
Nonwaiver 

22.1 No failure or waiver or successive failures or waivers on the part of either party in the 
enforcement of any condition, covenant, or article of this Contract shall operate as a 
discharge of any such condition, covenant, or article nor render the same invalid, nor impair 
the right of either party to enforce the same in the event of any subsequent breaches by the 
other party. 

ARTICLE 23.0 
Notices or Demands 

23.1 Any formal notice or demand to be given by one party to the other shall be given in 
writing by one of the following methods:  (i) hand delivered; (ii) deposited in the mail, 
properly stamped with the required postage; (iii) sent via registered or certified mail; or 
(iv) sent via recognized overnight courier service.  All such notices shall be addressed as 
follows: 

If to UTA:  

Utah Transit Authority 

ATTN: Teressa Pickett 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 
 
 
 
 
 

with a required copy to:  
Utah Transit Authority 
ATTN: Legal Counsel 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 

 
If to Consultant:  
Bank of America Merrill Lynch 
Attn: Jim Calpin 
One Bryant Park, 12th Floor 
New York, NY 10036 

 

23.2 Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given, and shall be effective, on delivery 
to the notice address then applicable for the party to which the notice is directed; 
provided, however, that refusal to accept delivery of a notice or the inability to deliver a 
notice because of an address change which was not properly communicated shall not 
defeat or delay the giving of a notice. Either party may change the address at which such 
party desires to receive written notice by providing written notice of such change to any 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
14 

other party. 

23.3 Notwithstanding Section 23.1, the parties may, through mutual agreement, develop 
alternative communication protocols to address change notices, requests for information 
and similar categories of communications.  Communications provided pursuant to such 
agreed means shall be recognized as valid notices under this Contract  

ARTICLE 24.0 
Contract Administrator 

24.1 UTA’s Contract Administrator for this Contract is Teressa Pickett, or designee. All 
questions and correspondence relating to the contractual aspects of this Contract 
should be directed to said Contract Administrator, or designee. 

ARTICLE 25.0 
General Provisions 

25.1 Neither this Contract nor any interest herein may be assigned, in whole or in part, by 
either party hereto without the prior written consent of the other party, except that without 
securing such prior consent, either party shall have the right to assign this Contract to any 
successor or to such party by way of merger or consolidation or acquisition of 
substantially all of the entire business and assets of such party relating to the subject 
matter of this Contract, provided that such successor shall expressly assume all of the 
obligations and liabilities of such party under this Contract, and provided further, that 
such party shall remain liable and responsible to the other party hereto for the 
performance and observance of all such obligations. 

25.2 This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the substantive and procedural laws 
of the State of Utah. Any litigation between the parties arising out of or relating to this 
Contract will be conducted exclusively in federal or state courts in the State of Utah and 
Consultant consents to the jurisdiction of such courts. 

25.3 The headings of the articles, clauses, and sections of this Contract are inserted for reference 
purposes only and are not restrictive as to content. 

25.4 The parties enter in to this Contract for the sole benefit of the parties, in exclusion of any 
third party, and no third party beneficiary is intended or created by the execution of this 
Contract. 

25.5 Any provision of this Contract prohibited or rendered unenforceable by operation of law 
shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Contract. 

25.6 This Contract shall constitute the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede all offers, negotiations and other 
agreements with respect thereto.   

25.7 Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and executed by the authorized 
representatives of each party.  

25.8 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the parties 
hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an 
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 



Any signature page of this Contract may be detacLI from any counterpart and reattached 
to any other counterpart hereof. The electronic Fansmission of a signed original of this 
Contract or any counterpart hereof and the rftransmission of any signed facsimile
transmission hereof shall be the same as delivery pf an original. 

25.9 Provisions of this Contract intended by their nature and content to survive termination of 
this Contract shall so survive including, but not limited to, Articles 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 
19, 20 and 25. 

ARTICLE 26.0 
Incorporated Documrnts

26.1 UT A's RFP 19-03036TP including all federal clauses and other attachments, and 
Consultant's Proposal, are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Contract, except 
to the extent that such documents were changed ?r altered by subsequent negotiations as 
indicated by the terms of this Contract, including f xhibits A and B.

ARTICLE 27.p 
Insurance Coverage Requirements for Consultant Employees 

27.1 The following requirements apply to the extent tpat: (i) the initial value of this Contract 
is equal to or in excess of $2 million; (ii) this Contract, with subsequent modifications, 
is reasonably anticipated to equal or excee3 $2 million; (iii) Consultant has a
subcontract at any tier that involves a sub-con;sultant that has an initial subcontract 
equal to or in excess of $1 million; or (i\7) any subcontract, with subsequent 
modifications, is reasonably anticipated to equat or exceed $1 million: 
A. Consultant shall, prior to the effective date of this Contract, demonstrate to UTA

that Consultant has and will maintain ah offer of qualified health insurance
coverage (as defined by Utah Code Ann. § 17B-2a-818.5) for the Consultant's
employees and the employee's dependents ming the dmation of this Contract.

B. Consultant shall also demonstrate to UTA that subcontractors meeting the above
described subcontract value threshold have and will maintain an offer of qualified
health insurance coverage (as defined by tah Code Ann. § 17B-2a-818.5for the
subcontractor's employees and the employ e's dependents during the duration of
the subcontract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and execut�d this Contract as of the day and year 
first above written. 
UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY: 

By _________ _ 
! BOFA SEC RITIES, INC.:

By_��'-------
Carolyn M. Gonot
Executive Director Managing Director 

By _________ _ 
15 

UTA Professional Services Contract -Cost Plus Fixed Fee· Rev. 9/14/2016 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
16 

 Robert K. Biles 

  Chief Financial Officer 

Approved as to form and content 

____________________  

Michael Bell 

Assistant Attorney General 

UTA Counsel  



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
17 

Exhibit A – General Scope of Services 

The specific statement of work for each underwriting project shall be contained in a separate 
Task Order which becomes an addendum to this Master PSA.  

Exhibit B - Consideration 

Costs for underwriting services as described in the RFP.  Specific costs and milestone payments 
shall be described in the individual Task Orders which become addendums to this Master PSA.  



This is a contract between UTA and BOFA Securities, Inc. for Bond Underwriting services for the issuance 

of any new money bonds as well as refundings associated with outstanding bonds.  Bank of America is 

one of three bond underwriting firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming bond 

issues.  Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of the firms to achieve the 

lowest true interest rate.  Fees for Bank of America (see the table below) are based upon the type and 

size of the bond issue.  Present plans are for a $69.6 million new bond issue.  Due to lower interest 

rates, a refunding may be possible. 

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond issues providing 

input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing tools or strategies that may benefit 

UTA, and disclosure requirements.  Their services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the 

issue is priced at prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to underwrite 

unsold balances, and executing the bond sale. 

 

Takedown by Maturity        
Years 1-30 $1.500         

Avg. Takedown $1.500         

          
Proposed Underwriter's Fees  

 $50 Million $100 Million $250 Million $500 Million  

 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000  
Average Takedown $75,000  $1.500  $150,000  $1.500  $375,000  $1.500  $750,000  $1.500   
IPREO (1) 5,112 0.102 10,109 0.101 25,101 0.100 50,088 0.100  
CUSIP (2) 913 0.018 913 0.009 913 0.004 913 0.002  
DTC 800 0.016 800 0.008 800 0.003 800 0.002  
Out of Pocket (3) 2,500 0.050 2,500 0.025 2,500 0.010 2,500 0.005  
Total $84,325  $1.686  $162,689  $1.627  $400,231  $1.601  $796,135  $1.592   

          

          
                              (1) Assumes use of IPREO Gameday and 2 manager in the syndicate.   
                              (2) Assumes 30 CUSIPS; final expense will be adjusted to reflect actual number of CUSIPS required.  

                              (3) Only reimburses deal-related expenses.  

Note: 

In the even an internet investor presentation is made, there will be a flat fee of $2,000 
(assuming a "slides only" version is used) which may be paid out of costs of issuance 
instead of the underwriter's discount if UTA desires.  

 



Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)* Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Supply Chain Yes 19-03036

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Contract

Original

6671

19-03036-1TP Wells Fargo Final Contract for

signatures.pdf
333.41KB

Bond Underwriter WFS.DOCX 14.18KB

Bond Underwriters Wells Fargo Securities

Wells Fargo Securities

This is a contract between UTA and Wells Fargo Securities for Bond Underwriting
services for the issuance of any new money bonds as well as refundings
associated with outstanding bonds. Wells Fargo is one of three bond underwriting
firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming bond issues.
Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of the firms to
achieve the lowest true interest rate. Fees for Wells Fargo (see the attached
memo) are based upon the type and size of the bond issue. Present plans are for
a $69.6 million new bond issue. Due to lower interest rates, a refunding may be
possible.

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond
issues providing input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing
tools or strategies that may benefit UTA, and disclosure requirements. Their
services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the issue is priced at
prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to
underwrite unsold balances, and executing the bond sale.

Bond underwriting fees are a cost of the bond issuance and are paid from the
bond proceeds.

Pickett, Teressa Diaz, Emily

Beginning

9/11/2019
Ending

7/30/2024
SERVICES RFP

11

58 0
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement



Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*
Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

0.00$ 0.00$ 793,748.00$
$ 793,748.00$

One-time Recurring

Yes No

9900.5510
1.xxxx

Local
Yes

No

1,000,000.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No Bingham, Troy

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Diaz, Emily Biles, Robert

Biles, Robert Meyer, William Steven

Print this page



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
1 

UTA CONTRACT NO. 19-03036-1TP 

MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Bond Underwriting Services 

This Master Professional Services Agreement is entered into and made effective as of the 
11th day of September, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between UTAH 
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a public transit district organized under the laws of the 
State of Utah (“UTA”), and WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., a Utah Corporation 
(“Underwriter”). RECITALS 

A. UTA desires to hire one or more professional service providers for qualified
underwriting services to prepare and market future bonds. 

B. On April 25, 2019, UTA issued Request for Proposal Package Number 19-
03036TP (“RFP”) encouraging interested parties to submit proposals to perform the services 
described in the RFP. 

C. Upon evaluation of the proposals submitted in response to the RFP, UTA
selected Underwriter as one of the preferred entities with whom to negotiate a contract to 
perform the Work. 

D. Underwriter is qualified and willing to perform the Work as set forth in the
Scope of Services. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the foregoing Recitals, which are 
incorporated herein by reference, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements hereafter set forth, the mutual benefits to the parties to be derived herefrom, and 
for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties 
acknowledge, it is hereby agreed as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.0 
Definitions 

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

1.1 The term “Change Order” shall mean a written modification to this Contract (the form of 
which shall be prescribed by UTA) pursuant to which the parties shall mutually agree upon 
and effect any additions, deletions, or variations in the Work (as such Work is initially 
defined by this Contract). The scope of modifications may include, without limitation, 
changes in the: (i) consideration paid to Underwriter, (ii) deliverables required to be 
furnished by Underwriter; (iii) method, manner or scope of the Work; or (iv) required 
performance completion milestones or other Contract schedule requirements. 

1.2 The term “Claims” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.1 of this Contract. 

1.3 The term “Underwriter’s Project Manager” shall mean Bob Kinney, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by Underwriter. 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
2 

1.4 The term “Underwriter’s Proposal” shall mean the Wells Fargo Proposal dated May 16, 
2019.  

1.5 The term “Contract” shall mean this Master Professional Services Agreement (inclusive 
of amendments and Change Orders hereto), together with all attached exhibits, all 
documents incorporated by reference pursuant to Article 26 hereof, and all drawings, 
reports, studies, industry standards, legal requirements and other items referenced in the 
foregoing documents. 

1.6 The term “Indemnitees” shall mean the UTA parties set forth in Section 16.1 of this 
Contract. 

1.7 The term “Master Professional Services Agreement” (“PSA”) shall mean the general 
contract between the Parties containing general terms and conditions and a general 
statement of work. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by a Master 
Professional Services Agreement.  

1.8 The term “Scope of Services” shall mean the services described in or reasonably implied 
by this Contract including, but not limited to, Exhibit “A” (and all Contract requirements 
associated with such services). 

1.9 The term “Task Order” refers to the specific order for underwriting services associated 
with a specific project. The Task Order shall contain the detailed description of services 
for the project and the authorized funding for the project. 

1.10 The term “UTA’s Project Manager” shall mean Emily Diaz, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by UTA. 

1.11 The term “Work” shall mean any activities undertaken or required to be undertaken by 
Underwriter in conjunction with the Scope of Services or Contract. 

ARTICLE 2.0 
Description of Services 

2.1 Underwriter shall be willing and capable to perform all Work as set forth in the Scope of 
Services. Except for items (if any) which this Contract specifically states will be UTA-
provided, Underwriter shall furnish all the labor, material and incidentals necessary for the 
Work. However, individual task orders will be issued for specific underwriting projects under 
this Agreement. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by this master 
agreement.  Each task order will contain an authority to proceed for the specific underwriting 
project.  

2.2 Underwriter shall perform all Work under this Contract in a professional manner, using at 
least that standard of care, skill and judgment which can reasonably be expected from 
similarly situated professionals.  

2.3 All Work shall conform to generally accepted standards in the securities industry. 
Underwriter shall perform all Work in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, 
rules, ordinances, permit constraints and other legal requirements including, without 
limitation, those related to safety and environmental protection.  

2.4 Underwriter shall furnish only qualified personnel and materials necessary for the 
performance of the Work. 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
3 

2.5 When performing Work on UTA property, Underwriter shall comply with all UTA work 
site rules including, without limitation, those related to safety and environmental 
protection. 

ARTICLE 3.0 
Day-to-Day Management of the Work 

3.1 Underwriter’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for Underwriter and 
will be responsible for all Work, as well as the coordination of such Work with UTA. 

3.2 UTA’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for UTA, and shall act as 
the liaison between UTA and Underwriter with respect to the Work. UTA's Project 
Manager shall also coordinate any design reviews, approvals or other direction required from 
UTA with respect to the Work. 

ARTICLE 4.0 
Progress of the Work 

4.1 Underwriter shall prosecute the Work in a diligent and continuous manner and in 
accordance with all applicable notice to proceed, critical path schedule and guaranteed 
completion date requirements set forth in (or developed and agreed by the parties in 
accordance with) the Scope of Services.  

4.2 Underwriter shall conduct regular meetings to update UTA's Project Manager regarding 
the progress of the Work including, but not limited to, any unusual conditions or critical 
path schedule items that could affect or delay the Work. Such meetings shall be held at 
intervals mutually agreed to between the parties. 

4.3 Underwriter shall provide all Contract submittals and other deliverables as specified in the 
Scope of Services. 

4.4 Any  reviews to be performed by UTA in accordance with the Scope of Services are for 
the sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Underwriter of its responsibility to comply 
with the Contract requirements. 

4.5 UTA will have the right to inspect, monitor and review any Work performed by 
Underwriter hereunder as deemed necessary by UTA to verify that such Work conforms to 
the Contract requirements. Any such inspection, monitoring and review performed by UTA 
is for the sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Underwriter of its responsibility to 
comply with the Contract requirements. 

4.6 UTA shall have the right to reject Work which fails to conform to the requirements of 
this Contract. Upon receipt of notice of rejection from UTA, Underwriter shall (at its sole 
expense and without entitlement to equitable schedule relief) promptly re-perform, 
replace or re-execute the Work so as to conform to the Contract requirements.  

4.7 If Underwriter fails to promptly remedy rejected Work as provided in Section 4.6, UTA 
may (without limiting or waiving any rights or remedies it may have) perform necessary 
corrective action using other contractors or UTA’s own forces. Any costs reasonably 
incurred by UTA in such corrective action shall be chargeable to Underwriter.  

ARTICLE 5.0 
Period of Performance 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

4 

5.1 This Contract shall commence as of the Effective Date. This Contract shall remain in full 
force and effect until all Task Orders have been completed.  All Task Orders shall be 
awarded on or before July 30, 2024. This guaranteed completion date may be extended if 
Underwriter and UTA mutually agree to an extension evidenced by a written Change 
Order. The rights and obligations of UTA and Underwriter under this Contract shall at all 
times be subject to and conditioned upon the provisions of this Contract. 

5.2 UTA will use best efforts to provide Task Order awards to each awardee, however there 
is no guarantee for the award of any minimum number of task orders to any particular 
awardee under this Agreement.  

ARTICLE 6.0  
Consideration 

6.1 For the performance of the Work, UTA shall pay Underwriter in accordance with Exhibit 
B. Payments shall be made in accordance with the milestones or other payment provisions 
detailed in Exhibit B. If Exhibit B does not specify any milestones or other payment 
provisions, then payment shall be made upon completion of all Work and final 
acceptance thereof by UTA. 

6.2 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a cost-reimbursement basis, such costs shall only be 
reimbursable to the extent allowed under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E. Compliance with 
federal cost principles shall apply regardless of funding source for this Contract. 

6.3 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a time and materials or labor hour basis, then Underwriter 
must refer to the not-to-exceed amount, maximum Contract amount, Contract budget 
amount or similar designation (any of these generically referred to as the “Not to Exceed 
Amount”) specified in Exhibit B (as applicable). Unless and until UTA has notified 
Underwriter by written instrument designated or indicated to be a Change Order that the 
Not to Exceed Amount has been increased (which notice shall specify a revised Not to 
Exceed Amount): (i) Underwriter shall not be obligated to perform services or incur costs 
which would cause its total compensation under this Contract to exceed the Not to 
Exceed Amount; and (ii) UTA shall not be obligated to make payments which would 
cause the total compensation paid to Underwriter to exceed the Not to Exceed 
Amount. 

6.4 UTA may withhold and/or offset from payment any amounts reasonably reflecting: (i) 
items of Work that have been rejected by UTA in accordance with this Contract; (ii) 
invoiced items that are not payable under this Contract; or (iii) amounts Underwriter 
owes to UTA under this Contract.  

ARTICLE 7.0 
Contract Changes 

7.1 UTA’s Project Manager or designee may, at any time, by written order designated or 
indicated to be a Change Order, direct changes in the Work including, but not limited 
to, changes: 

A. In the Scope of Services; 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
5 

B. In the method or manner of performance of the Work; or

C. In the schedule or completion dates applicable to the Work.

To the extent that any change in Work directed by UTA causes an actual and 
demonstrable impact to: (i) Underwriter’s cost of performing the work; or (ii) the time 
required for the Work, then (in either case) the Change Order shall include an equitable 
adjustment to this Contract to make Underwriter whole with respect to the impacts of 
such change. 

7.2 A change in the Work may only be directed by UTA through a written Change Order or 
(alternatively) UTA’s expressed, written authorization directing Underwriter to proceed 
pending negotiation of a Change Order. Any changes to this Contract undertaken by 
Underwriter without such written authority shall be at Underwriter’s sole risk. 
Underwriter shall not be entitled to rely on any other manner or method of direction. 

7.3 Underwriter shall also be entitled to an equitable adjustment to address the actual and 
demonstrable impacts of “constructive” changes in the Work if: (i) subsequent to the 
Effective Date of this Contract, there is a material change with respect to any law or other 
requirement set forth in this Contract; or (ii) other conditions exist which materially modify 
the magnitude, character or complexity of the Work from what should have been 
reasonably assumed by Underwriter based on the information included in (or referenced 
by) this Contract. In order to be eligible for equitable relief for “constructive” changes in 
Work, Underwriter must give UTA’s Project Manager or designee written notice stating: 

A. The date, circumstances, and source of the change; and

B. That Underwriter regards the identified item as a change in Work giving rise to an
adjustment in this Contract.

Underwriter must provide notice of a “constructive” change and assert its right to an 
equitable adjustment under this Section within ten (10) days after Underwriter becomes 
aware (or reasonably should have become aware) of the facts and circumstances giving 
rise to the “constructive” change. Underwriter’s failure to provide timely written notice 
as provided above shall constitute a waiver of Underwriter’s rights with respect to such 
claim.  

7.4 As soon as practicable, Underwriter must provide UTA with information and 
documentation reasonably demonstrating the actual cost and schedule impacts associated 
with any change in Work compensable under Section 7.1 or 7.3. Equitable adjustments 
will be made via Change Order. Any dispute regarding the Underwriter’s entitlement to 
an equitable adjustment (or the extent of any such equitable adjustment) shall be resolved 
in accordance with Article 20 of this Contract.  

ARTICLE 8.0 
Invoicing Procedures and Records 

8.1 Underwriter shall submit invoices to UTA’s Project Manager for processing and payment 
in accordance with Exhibit B. If Exhibit B does not specify invoice instructions, then 
Underwriter shall invoice UTA after completion of all Work and final acceptance 
thereof by UTA. Invoices shall be provided in the form specified by UTA. Reasonable 
supporting documentation demonstrating Underwriter’s entitlement to the requested 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
6 

payment must be submitted with each invoice. UTA shall have the right to 
disapprove (and withhold from payment) specific line items of each invoice to 
address non-conforming Work or invoicing deficiencies. Approval by UTA shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. UTA shall have the right to offset from payment 
amounts reasonably reflecting the value of any claim which UTA has against 
Underwriter under this Contract. Payment for all invoice amounts not specifically 
disapproved by UTA shall be provided to Underwriter within thirty (30) calendar days 
of invoice submittal. 

ARTICLE 9.0 
Ownership of Materials 

9.1 All data including, but not limited to, maps, drawings, sketches, renderings, software, 
hardware, and specifications, including the original thereof, developed by Underwriter as 
a part of its Work under this Contract (collectively and generically referred to in this Article 
as “Work Product”) are the property of UTA. All Work Product must be delivered to UTA 
no later than the completion of the Work and prior to final payment by UTA. In the event 
this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the Work, then Underwriter shall transmit 
all Work Product completed or in-process as of the date of termination.  

9.2 UTA shall not be construed to be the owner of any intellectual property contained in the 
Work Product that was owned or created by Underwriter outside of the scope of this Contract. 
However, with respect to such intellectual property of Underwriter, Underwriter hereby 
grants UTA a non-exclusive perpetual license to use such intellectual property to the full 
extent reasonably necessary for UTA’s use and enjoyment of the Work Product furnished 
under this Contract.  

ARTICLE 10.0 
Subcontracts 

10.1 Underwriter shall give advance written notification to UTA of any proposed subcontract 
(not indicated in Underwriter’s Proposal) negotiated with respect to the Work. UTA shall 
have the right to approve all subcontractors, such approval not to be withheld unreasonably. 

10.2 No subsequent change, removal or substitution shall be made with respect to any such 
subcontractor without the prior written approval of UTA. 

10.3 Underwriter shall be solely responsible for making payments to subcontractors, and such 
payments shall be made within thirty (30) days after Underwriter receives corresponding 
payments from UTA. 

10.4 Underwriter shall be responsible for and direct all Work performed by subcontractors. 

10.5 Underwriter agrees that no subcontracts shall provide for payment on a cost-plus-
percentage-of-cost basis. Underwriter further agrees that all subcontracts shall comply 
with all applicable laws. 

ARTICLE 11.0  
Key Personnel 

11.1 Underwriter shall provide the key personnel as indicated in Underwriter’s Proposal (or other 
applicable provisions of this Contract). 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

7 

ARTICLE 12.0 
Suspension of Work 

12.1 UTA may, at any time, by written order to Underwriter, require Underwriter to suspend, 
delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work called for by this Contract. Any such order 
shall be specifically identified as a “Suspension of Work Order” issued pursuant to 
this Article. Upon receipt of such an order, Underwriter shall immediately comply with its 
terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of further costs allocable to 
the Work covered by the order during the period of Work stoppage. 

12.2 If a Suspension of Work Order issued under this Article is canceled, Underwriter shall 
resume Work as mutually agreed to in writing by the parties hereto. 

12.3 If a Suspension of Work Order is not canceled and the Work covered by such order is 
terminated for the convenience of UTA, reasonable costs incurred as a result of the 
Suspension of Work Order shall be considered in negotiating the termination settlement. 

12.4 If the Suspension of Work causes an increase in Underwriter’s cost or time to perform 
the Work, UTA’s Project Manager or designee shall make an equitable adjustment to 
compensate Underwriter for the additional costs or time, and modify this Contract by 
Change Order. 

ARTICLE 13.0 
Termination for Convenience; Termination for Cause and Default Remedies 

13.1 UTA shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time by providing written 
notice to Underwriter. If this Contract is terminated for convenience, UTA shall pay 
Underwriter its costs and a reasonable profit on work performed up to the effective date of 
the termination notice, plus costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by Underwriter to 
effect such termination. UTA shall not be responsible for anticipated profits based on 
Work not performed as of the effective date of termination.  Underwriter shall promptly 
submit a termination claim to UTA. If Underwriter has any property in its possession 
belonging to UTA, Underwriter will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner 
UTA directs. 

13.2 If Underwriter materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, and 
such failure is not cured or a cure initiated to the satisfaction of UTA within ten (10) days 
after receipt of written notice from UTA, UTA may, at its discretion: 

A. Terminate this Contract (in whole or in part) for default and complete the Work 
using other contractors or UTA’s own forces, in which event Underwriter shall be 
liable for all incremental costs so incurred by UTA; 

B. Pursue other remedies available under this Contract (regardless of whether the 
termination remedy is invoked); and/or 

C. Except to the extent limited by this Contract, pursue other remedies available at 
law.  

Upon receipt of a termination notice as provided above, Underwriter shall (i) 
immediately discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); (ii) 
deliver to UTA all data, drawings and other deliverables, whether completed or in 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
8 

process; and (iii) if Underwriter has any property in its possession belonging to UTA, 
account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. Underwriter shall remit 
a final invoice for all services performed and expenses incurred in full accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Contract up to the effective date of termination. UTA shall 
calculate termination damages payable under this Contract, shall offset such damages 
against Underwriter’s final invoice, and shall invoice Underwriter for any additional 
amounts payable by Underwriter (to the extent termination damages exceed the invoice). 
All rights and remedies provided in this Article are cumulative and not exclusive. 

ARTICLE 14.0 
Information, Records, and Reports; Audit Rights 

14.1 Underwriter shall retain all books, papers, documents, accounting records and other 
evidence to support any cost-based billings allowable under Exhibit B (or any other 
provision of this Contract). Such records shall include, without limitation, time sheets 
and other cost documentation related to the performance of labor services, as well as 
subcontracts, purchase orders, other contract documents, invoices, receipts or other 
documentation supporting non-labor costs. Underwriter shall also retain other books and 
records related to the performance, quality or management of this Contract and/or 
Underwriter’s compliance with this Contract. Records shall be retained by Underwriter 
for a period of at least six (6) years after completion of the Work. During this six-year 
period, such records shall be made available at all reasonable times for audit and 
inspection by UTA and other authorized auditing parties including, but not limited to, the 
Federal Transit Administration. Copies of requested records shall be furnished to UTA 
or designated audit parties upon written request. Underwriter agrees that it shall flow-
down (as a matter of written contract) these records requirements to all subcontractors 
utilized in the performance of the Work at any tier. 

ARTICLE 15.0 
Findings Confidential 

15.1 Any documents, reports, information, or other data and materials available to or prepared 
or assembled by Underwriter or subcontractors under this Contract are considered 
confidential and shall not be made available to any person, organization, or entity by 
Underwriter without consent in writing from UTA. Notwithstanding any other provision 
contained herein, and provided that advance notice, to the extent practicable and legally 
permitted (provided that no such notice shall be required for routine regulatory 
examinations and audits, including self-regulatory examinations), and fair opportunity to 
contest in order to prevent disclosure is provided to UTA, Underwriter may disclose, and 
shall not be liable for disclosing, such information to the extent such information is (i) 
compelled to be disclosed pursuant to a subpoena, judicial order or similar legal process, 
(ii) requested by a regulatory authority, self-regulatory authority, stock exchange or bank
examiner having jurisdiction over the Underwriter or any of its affiliates (iii) otherwise
required by law or regulation to be disclosed, or (iv) for evidentiary purposes in any
action, proceeding or arbitration related to a transaction performed pursuant to this
Contract, or related to the disclosed information, to which the Underwriter is a party.

15.2 It is hereby agreed that the following information is not considered to be confidential: 

A. Information already in the public domain;



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

9 

B. Information disclosed to Underwriter by a third party not know by the Underwriter 
to be under a confidentiality obligation; 

C. Information developed by or in the custody of Underwriter before entering into this 
Contract; 

D. Information developed by Underwriter through its work with other clients; and 

E. Information required to be disclosed by law or regulation including, but not limited 
to, subpoena, court order or administrative order. 

ARTICLE 16.0 
General Insurance  

16.1 Subject to the indemnification provisions of the actual bond purchase agreement for each 
transaction Underwriter shall protect, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless UTA 
and its trustees, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively “Indemnitees”) 
against and from any and all claims, demands, suits, losses, costs and damages of every 
kind and description, including attorneys’ fees and/or litigation expenses (hereinafter 
collectively “Claims”), brought or made against or incurred by any of the Indemnitees 
resulting from or arising out of the negligent acts or omissions (actual or alleged) of 
Underwriter its subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them 
or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable in conjunction with this Contract or 
any Work performed hereunder.For the duration of this Contract, Underwriter shall 
maintain at its own expense, and provide proof of said insurance to UTA, the following 
types of insurance: 

A. Occurrence type Commercial General Liability Insurance ISO CG001, with an 
edition date of 11-88 or later, or comparable form, covering the indemnity and 
other liability provisions of this ContractThe limits shall be $1,000,000 per 
occurrence with an annual aggregate of $2,000,000. The policy shall be endorsed 
to include the following additional insured language: "The Utah Transit Authority 
shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the 
activities performed by, or on behalf of the Underwriter, including completed 
operations in the execution of the duties of this contract." 

B. Professional Liability insurance with the following limits and coverages: 

Minimum Limits:  

$1,000,000 each claim 

$2,000,000 annual aggregate  

Coverages: 

1. Insured's interest in joint ventures 

2. Punitive damages coverage (where not prohibited by law) 

3. Limited contractual liability 

4. Retroactive date prior to date 

5. Extended reporting period of 36 months in the event of policy 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
10 

cancelation or non-renewal 

Coverage which meets or exceeds the minimum requirements will be 
maintained, purchased annually in full force and effect until 3 years past 
completion of the Work unless such coverage becomes unavailable to the market 
on a commercially reasonable basis, in which case Underwriter will notify 
UTA. If UTA agrees that such coverage is not reasonably available in the 
commercial market, Underwriter may elect not to provide such coverage. 

C. Automobile insurance covering owned, if any, non-owned, and hired automobile
with limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit of coverage. The policy
shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The Utah
Transit Authority shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability
arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Underwriter, including
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by theUnderwriter in the execution
of the duties of this contract.”

D. Workers' Compensation insurance conforming to the appropriate states' statutory
requirements covering all employees of Underwriter, as long as they are engaged in
the work covered by this Contract. The policy shall also cover Employers
Liability with limits no less than $500,000 each accident, and each employee for
disease..

16.2 On insurance policies where UTA is named as an additional insured, UTA shall be an 
additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Underwriter. Insurance 
limits indicated in this agreement are minimum limits.  Larger limits may be indicated 
after Underwriter’s assessment of the exposure for this contract; for its own protection 
and the protection of UTA. Underwriter's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
and non-contributory with respect to all other available sources. 

16.3 Underwriter warrants that this Contract has been thoroughly reviewed by its insurance 
agent, broker or consultant, and that said agent/broker/ consultant has been instructed to 
procure for Underwriter the insurance coverage and endorsements required herein. 

16.4 Underwriter shall furnish UTA with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or 
equivalent) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to 
be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All 
certificates are to be received by UTA before work commences.  Each insurance policy 
required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under 
this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure to maintain the 
insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a 
material breach of contract.  

16.5 UTA, as a self-insured governmental entity, shall not be required to provide insurance 
coverage for the risk of loss to UTA premises and improvements or equipment owned by 
UTA. 

ARTICLE 18.0 
Independent Contractor 

18.1 Underwriter is an independent contractor and agrees that its personnel will not represent 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
11 

themselves as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of UTA by reason of this Contract. 
Underwriter is responsible to provide and pay the cost of all its employees' benefits. 

ARTICLE 19.0 
Prohibited Interest 

19.1 No member, officer, agent, or employee of UTA during his or her tenure or for one year 
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, including prospective employment by 
Underwriter in this Contract or the proceeds thereof without specific written 
authorization by UTA. 

ARTICLE 20.0 
Dispute Resolution 

20.1 The parties shall attempt to informally resolve all claims, counterclaims and other 
disputes through the escalation process described below. No party may bring a legal 
action to enforce any term of this Contract without first having exhausted such process. 

20.2 The time schedule for escalation of disputes, including disputed requests for Change 
Order, shall be as follows: 

Level of Authority  Time Limit 
UTA’s Project Manager/Underwriter’s Project Manager Five calendar days 

UTA’s SECOND LEVEL/Underwriter’s SECOND LEVEL Five calendar days 

UTA’s THIRD LEVEL/Underwriter’s THIRD LEVEL Five calendar days 
Unless otherwise directed by UTA’s Project Manager, Underwriter shall diligently 
continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. 

20.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved informally in accordance with the escalation procedures 
set forth above, then either party may commence legal action in accordance with the 
venue and law provisions of this Contract. If mutually agreed, the parties may also submit 
the dispute to arbitration or mediation. 

ARTICLE 21 
Successors and Assignees 

21.1 Underwriter shall not assign, sublet, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any interest 
in this Contract without prior written approval of UTA, and any attempted transfer in 
violation of this restriction shall be void. 

ARTICLE 22.0 
Nonwaiver 

22.1 No failure or waiver or successive failures or waivers on the part of either party in the 
enforcement of any condition, covenant, or article of this Contract shall operate as a 
discharge of any such condition, covenant, or article nor render the same invalid, nor impair 
the right of either party to enforce the same in the event of any subsequent breaches by the 
other party. 

ARTICLE 23.0 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
12 

Notices or Demands 
23.1 Any formal notice or demand to be given by one party to the other shall be given in 

writing by one of the following methods:  (i) hand delivered; (ii) deposited in the mail, 
properly stamped with the required postage; (iii) sent via registered or certified mail; or 
(iv) sent via recognized overnight courier service.  All such notices shall be addressed as
follows:

If to UTA: 

Utah Transit Authority 

ATTN: Teressa Pickett 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 

with a required copy to:  
Utah Transit Authority 
ATTN: Legal Counsel 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 

If to Underwriter: 
Wells Fargo Securities 
Attn: Bob Kinney 
299 South Main, 6th Floor 
Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

23.2 Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given, and shall be effective, on delivery 
to the notice address then applicable for the party to which the notice is directed; 
provided, however, that refusal to accept delivery of a notice or the inability to deliver a 
notice because of an address change which was not properly communicated shall not 
defeat or delay the giving of a notice. Either party may change the address at which such 
party desires to receive written notice by providing written notice of such change to any 
other party. 

23.3 Notwithstanding Section 23.1, the parties may, through mutual agreement, develop 
alternative communication protocols to address change notices, requests for information 
and similar categories of communications.  Communications provided pursuant to such 
agreed means shall be recognized as valid notices under this Contract  

ARTICLE 24.0 
Contract Administrator 

24.1 UTA’s Contract Administrator for this Contract is Teressa Pickett, or designee. All 
questions and correspondence relating to the contractual aspects of this Contract 
should be directed to said Contract Administrator, or designee. 

ARTICLE 25.0 
General Provisions 

25.1 Neither this Contract nor any interest herein may be assigned, in whole or in part, by 
either party hereto without the prior written consent of the other party, except that without 
securing such prior consent, either party shall have the right to assign this Contract to any 
successor or to such party by way of merger or consolidation or acquisition of 
substantially all of the entire business and assets of such party relating to the subject 





UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY: 

By _________ _ 

Carolyn M. Gonot

Executive Director

By ________ _ 

Robert K. Biles 

Chief Financial Officer 

Approved as to form and content 

Michael Bell 

Assistant Attorney General 

UTA Counsel 

Exhibit A - General Scope of Services 

14 
UTA Professional Services Contract-Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 

By ________ _ 

Name 
---------

Title 
----------



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
15 

Exhibit A – General Scope of Services 

The specific statement of work for each underwriting project shall be contained in a separate 
Task Order which becomes an addendum to this Master PSA. 

Exhibit B – Consideration 

Costs for underwriting services as described in the RFP.  Specific costs and milestone payments 
shall be described in the individual Task Orders which become addendums to the Master PSA.  



This is a contract between UTA and Wells Fargo Securities for Bond Underwriting services for the 

issuance of any new money bonds as well as refundings associated with outstanding bonds.  Wells Fargo 

is one of three bond underwriting firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming 

bond issues.  Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of the firms to achieve 

the lowest true interest rate.  Fees for Wells Fargo (see the table below) are based upon the type and 

size of the bond issue.  Present plans are for a $69.6 million new bond issue.  Due to lower interest 

rates, a refunding may be possible. 

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond issues providing 

input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing tools or strategies that may benefit 

UTA, and disclosure requirements.  Their services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the 

issue is priced at prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to underwrite 

unsold balances, and executing the bond sale. 

 

Proposed Underwriter's Fees 

 

$50 Million 
Transaction $100 Million $250 Million $500 Million 

 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 

Average Takedown $1,000,000  $2.000  $175,000  $1.750  $437,500  $1.750  $750,000 $1.500 

Management Fee 
 $                 
-    

 $            
-     $          -    

 $          
-     $          -    

 $          
-     $          -    

 $          
-    

Underwriting Expenses 

IPREO 5390 0.108 8165 0.082 20,345 0.081 40,645 0.081 

CUSIP 1,303 0.026 1,303 0.013 1,303 0.005 1,303 0.003 

DTC Charges 800 0.016 800 0.008 800 0.003 800 0.002 

Travel & Misc. (1) 1,000 0.020 1,000 0.01 1,000 0.004 1,000 0.002 

Total 136,174 0.170 11,268 2.166 23,448 0.094 43,748 0.087 

Total Underwriting Spread $108,493  $2.170  $186,268  $1.863  $460,948  $1.844  $793,748  $1.587  

         

                                      (1) Estimated (if necessary) - will be billed as incurred. 
 



Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)* Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Supply Chain Yes 19-03036

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Contract

Original

6671

19-03036-2TP JP Morgan Final for signatures.pdf 265.18KB

Bond Underwriter JPMS.DOCX 14.39KB

Bond Underwriting JP Morgan Securities

J.P.Morgan Securities

This is a contract between UTA and J.P.Morgan Securities, LLC for Bond
Underwriting services for the issuance of any new money bonds as well as
refundings associated with outstanding bonds. JPMorgan is one of three bond
underwriting firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming
bond issues. Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of
the firms to achieve the lowest true interest rate. Fees for JPMorgan (see the
attached memo) are based upon the type and size of the bond issue. Present
plans are for a $69.6 million new bond issue. Due to lower interest rates, a
refunding may be possible.

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond
issues providing input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing
tools or strategies that may benefit UTA, and disclosure requirements. Their
services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the issue is priced at
prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to
underwrite unsold balances, and executing the bond sale.

Bond underwriting fees are a cost of the bond issuance and are paid from the
bond proceeds.

Pickett, Teressa Diaz, Emily

Beginning

9/11/2019
Ending

7/30/2024
SERVICES RFP

11

58 0
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement

0.00$ 0.00$ 955,368.00$



Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*
Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

$ 955,368.00$

One-time Recurring

Yes No

9900.5510
1.xxxx

Local
Yes

No

1,000,000.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No Bingham, Troy

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Diaz, Emily Biles, Robert

Biles, Robert Gonot, Carolyn

Print this page



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
1 

UTA CONTRACT NO. 19-03036-2TP 

MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Bond Underwriting Services 

This Master Professional Services Agreement is entered into and made effective as of the 
11th day of September, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) by and between UTAH 
TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a public transit district organized under the laws of the State of Utah 
(“UTA”), and J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES, LLC (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

A. UTA desires to hire one or more professional service providers for qualified
underwriting services to prepare and market future bonds. 

B. On April 25, 2019, UTA issued Request for Proposal Package Number 19-
03036TP (“RFP”) encouraging interested parties to submit proposals to perform the services 
described in the RFP. 

C. Upon evaluation of the proposals submitted in response to the RFP, UTA
selected Consultant as one of the preferred entities with whom to negotiate a contract to 
perform the Work. 

D. Consultant is qualified and willing to perform the Work as set forth in the Scope
of Services. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the foregoing Recitals, which are 
incorporated herein by reference, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
agreements hereafter set forth, the mutual benefits to the parties to be derived herefrom, and 
for other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties 
acknowledge, it is hereby agreed as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.0 
Definitions 

As used throughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

1.1 The term “Change Order” shall mean a written modification to this Contract (the form of 
which shall be prescribed by UTA) pursuant to which the parties shall mutually agree upon 
and effect any additions, deletions, or variations in the Work (as such Work is initially 
defined by this Contract). The scope of modifications may include, without limitation, 
changes in the: (i) consideration paid to Consultant, (ii) deliverables required to be 
furnished by Consultant; (iii) method, manner or scope of the Work; or (iv) required 
performance completion milestones or other Contract schedule requirements. 

1.2 The term “Claims” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.1 of this Contract. 

1.3 The term “Consultant’s Project Manager” shall mean Antti Suhonen, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by Consultant. 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

2 

1.4 The term “Consultant’s Proposal” shall mean the J. P. Morgan Proposal dated May 16, 
2019.  

1.5 The term “Contract” shall mean this Professional Services Agreement (inclusive of 
amendments and Change Orders hereto), together with all attached exhibits, all 
documents incorporated by reference pursuant to Article 26 hereof, and all drawings, 
reports, studies, industry standards, legal requirements and other items referenced in the 
foregoing documents. 

1.6 The term “Master Professional Services Agreement” (“PSA”) shall mean the general 
contract between the Parties containing general terms and conditions and a general 
statement of work. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by a Master 
Professional Services Agreement.  

1.7 The term “Scope of Services” shall mean the services described in or reasonably implied 
by this Contract including, but not limited to, Exhibit “A” (and all Contract requirements 
associated with such services). 

1.8 The term “Task Order” refers to the specific order for underwriting services associated 
with a specific project. The Task Order shall contain the detailed description of services 
for the project and the authorized funding for the project. 

1.9 The term “UTA’s Project Manager” shall mean Emily Diaz, or his/her successor as 
appointed or designated in writing by UTA. 

1.10 The term “Work” shall mean any activities undertaken or required to be undertaken by 
Consultant in conjunction with the Scope of Services or Contract. 

ARTICLE 2.0 
Description of Services 

2.1 Consultant shall be willing and capable to perform all Work as set forth in the Scope of 
Services. Except for items (if any) which this Contract specifically states will be UTA-
provided, Consultant shall furnish all the labor, material and incidentals necessary for the 
Work.  However, individual task orders will be issued for specific underwriting projects 
under this Agreement. No actual work or expenditure of funds is authorized by this master 
agreement. Each task order will contain an authority to proceed for the specific underwriting 
project. 

2.2 Consultant shall perform all Work under this Contract in a professional manner, using at 
least that standard of care, skill and judgment which can reasonably be expected from 
similarly situated professionals.  

2.3 All Work shall conform to generally accepted standards in the transit industry. Consultant 
shall perform all Work in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, 
ordinances, permit constraints and other legal requirements including, without limitation, 
those related to safety and environmental protection.  

2.4 Consultant shall furnish only qualified personnel and materials necessary for the 
performance of the Work. 

2.5 When performing Work on UTA property, Consultant shall comply with all UTA work 
site rules including, without limitation, those related to safety and environmental 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

3 

protection. 

ARTICLE 3.0 
Day-to-Day Management of the Work 

3.1 Consultant’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for Consultant and 
will be responsible for all Work, as well as the coordination of such Work with UTA. 

3.2 UTA’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for UTA, and shall act as 
the liaison between UTA and Consultant with respect to the Work. UTA's Project Manager 
shall also coordinate any design reviews, approvals or other direction required from UTA 
with respect to the Work. 

ARTICLE 4.0 
Progress of the Work 

4.1 Consultant shall prosecute the Work in a diligent and continuous manner and in accordance 
with all applicable notice to proceed, critical path schedule and guaranteed completion date 
requirements set forth in (or developed and agreed by the parties in accordance with) the 
Scope of Services.  

4.2 Consultant shall conduct regular meetings to update UTA's Project Manager regarding 
the progress of the Work including, but not limited to, any unusual conditions or critical 
path schedule items that could affect or delay the Work. Such meetings shall be held at 
intervals mutually agreed to between the parties. 

4.3 Consultant shall deliver monthly progress reports and provide all Contract submittals and 
other deliverables as specified in the Scope of Services. 

4.4 Any drawing or other submittal reviews to be performed by UTA in accordance with the 
Scope of Services are for the sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its 
responsibility to comply with the Contract requirements. 

4.5 UTA will have the right to inspect, monitor and review any Work performed by Consultant 
hereunder as deemed necessary by UTA to verify that such Work conforms to the Contract 
requirements. Any such inspection, monitoring and review performed by UTA is for the 
sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its responsibility to comply with 
the Contract requirements. 

4.6 UTA shall have the right to reject Work which fails to conform to the requirements of 
this Contract. Upon receipt of notice of rejection from UTA, Consultant shall (at its sole 
expense and without entitlement to equitable schedule relief) promptly re-perform, 
replace or re-execute the Work so as to conform to the Contract requirements.  

4.7 If Consultant fails to promptly remedy rejected Work as provided in Section 4.6, UTA 
may (without limiting or waiving any rights or remedies it may have) perform necessary 
corrective action using other contractors or UTA’s own forces. Any costs reasonably 
incurred by UTA in such corrective action shall be chargeable to Consultant.  

ARTICLE 5.0 
Period of Performance 

5.1 This Contract shall commence as of the Effective Date. This Contract shall remain in full 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

4 

force and effect until all Task Orders have been completed.  All Task Orders shall be 
awarded on or before July 30, 2024. This guaranteed completion date may be extended if 
Consultant and UTA mutually agree to an extension evidenced by a written Change Order. 
The rights and obligations of UTA and Consultant under this Contract shall at all times be 
subject to and conditioned upon the provisions of this Contract. 

5.2 UTA will use best efforts to provide Task Order awards to each awardee, however there 
is no guarantee for the award of any minimum number of task orders to any particular 
awardee under this Agreement.   

ARTICLE 6.0  
Consideration 

6.1 For the performance of the Work, UTA shall pay Consultant in accordance with Exhibit 
B. Payments shall be made in accordance with the milestones or other payment provisions 
detailed in Exhibit B. If Exhibit B does not specify any milestones or other payment 
provisions, then payment shall be made upon completion of all Work and final 
acceptance thereof by UTA. 

6.2 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a cost-reimbursement basis, such costs shall only be 
reimbursable to the extent allowed under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E. Compliance with 
federal cost principles shall apply regardless of funding source for this Contract. 

6.3 To the extent that Exhibit B or another provision of this Contract calls for any portion of 
the consideration to be paid on a time and materials or labor hour basis, then Consultant 
must refer to the not-to-exceed amount, maximum Contract amount, Contract budget 
amount or similar designation (any of these generically referred to as the “Not to Exceed 
Amount”) specified in Exhibit B (as applicable). Unless and until UTA has notified 
Consultant by written instrument designated or indicated to be a Change Order that the 
Not to Exceed Amount has been increased (which notice shall specify a revised Not to 
Exceed Amount): (i) Consultant shall not be obligated to perform services or incur costs 
which would cause its total compensation under this Contract to exceed the Not to 
Exceed Amount; and (ii) UTA shall not be obligated to make payments which would 
cause the total compensation paid to Consultant to exceed the Not to Exceed Amount. 

6.4 UTA may withhold and/or offset from payment any amounts reasonably reflecting: (i) 
items of Work that have been rejected by UTA in accordance with this Contract; (ii) 
invoiced items that are not payable under this Contract; or (iii) amounts Consultant owes 
to UTA under this Contract.  

ARTICLE 7.0 
Contract Changes 

7.1 UTA’s Project Manager or designee may, at any time, by written order designated or 
indicated to be a Change Order, direct changes in the Work including, but not limited 
to, changes: 

A. In the Scope of Services; 

B. In the method or manner of performance of the Work; or 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

5 

C. In the schedule or completion dates applicable to the Work. 

To the extent that any change in Work directed by UTA causes an actual and 
demonstrable impact to: (i) Consultant’s cost of performing the work; or (ii) the time 
required for the Work, then (in either case) the Change Order shall include an equitable 
adjustment to this Contract to make Consultant whole with respect to the impacts of such 
change. 

7.2 A change in the Work may only be directed by UTA through a written Change Order or 
(alternatively) UTA’s expressed, written authorization directing Consultant to proceed 
pending negotiation of a Change Order. Any changes to this Contract undertaken by 
Consultant without such written authority shall be at Consultant’s sole risk. Consultant 
shall not be entitled to rely on any other manner or method of direction. 

7.3 Consultant shall also be entitled to an equitable adjustment to address the actual and 
demonstrable impacts of “constructive” changes in the Work if: (i) subsequent to the 
Effective Date of this Contract, there is a material change with respect to any law or other 
requirement set forth in this Contract; or (ii) other conditions exist which materially modify 
the magnitude, character or complexity of the Work from what should have been 
reasonably assumed by Consultant based on the information included in (or referenced by) 
this Contract. In order to be eligible for equitable relief for “constructive” changes in Work, 
Consultant must give UTA’s Project Manager or designee written notice stating: 

A. The date, circumstances, and source of the change; and 

B. That Consultant regards the identified item as a change in Work giving rise to an 
adjustment in this Contract.  

Consultant must provide notice of a “constructive” change and assert its right to an 
equitable adjustment under this Section within ten (10) days after Consultant becomes 
aware (or reasonably should have become aware) of the facts and circumstances giving 
rise to the “constructive” change. Consultant’s failure to provide timely written notice as 
provided above shall constitute a waiver of Consultant’s rights with respect to such claim.  

7.4 As soon as practicable, Consultant must provide UTA with information and documentation 
reasonably demonstrating the actual cost and schedule impacts associated with any change 
in Work compensable under Section 7.1 or 7.3. Equitable adjustments will be made via 
Change Order. Any dispute regarding the Consultant’s entitlement to an equitable 
adjustment (or the extent of any such equitable adjustment) shall be resolved in 
accordance with Article 20 of this Contract.  

ARTICLE 8.0 
Invoicing Procedures and Records 

8.1 Consultant shall submit invoices to UTA’s Project Manager for processing and payment 
in accordance with Exhibit B. If Exhibit B does not specify invoice instructions, then 
Consultant shall invoice UTA after completion of all Work and final acceptance thereof 
by UTA. Invoices shall be provided in the form specified by UTA. Reasonable 
supporting documentation demonstrating Consultant’s entitlement to the requested 
payment must be submitted with each invoice. UTA shall have the right to 
disapprove (and withhold from payment) specific line items of each invoice to 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

6 

address non-conforming Work or invoicing deficiencies. Approval by UTA shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. UTA shall have the right to offset from payment 
amounts reasonably reflecting the value of any claim which UTA has against 
Consultant under this Contract. Payment for all invoice amounts not specifically 
disapproved by UTA shall be provided to Consultant within thirty (30) calendar days of 
invoice submittal. 

ARTICLE 9.0 
Ownership of Materials 

9.1 All data including, but not limited to, maps, drawings, sketches, renderings, software, 
hardware, and specifications, including the original thereof, developed by Consultant as a 
part of its Work under this Contract (collectively and generically referred to in this Article 
as “Work Product”) are the property of UTA. All Work Product must be delivered to UTA 
no later than the completion of the Work and prior to final payment by UTA. In the event 
this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the Work, then Consultant shall transmit 
all Work Product completed or in-process as of the date of termination.  

9.2 UTA shall not be construed to be the owner of any intellectual property contained in the 
Work Product that was owned or created by Consultant outside of the scope of this Contract. 
However, with respect to such intellectual property of Consultant, Consultant hereby grants 
UTA a non-exclusive perpetual license to use such intellectual property to the full extent 
reasonably necessary for UTA’s use and enjoyment of the Work Product furnished under 
this Contract.  

ARTICLE 10.0 
Subcontracts 

10.1 Consultant shall give advance written notification to UTA of any proposed subcontract 
(not indicated in Consultant’s Proposal) negotiated with respect to the Work. UTA shall 
have the right to approve all subcontractors, such approval not to be withheld unreasonably. 

10.2 No subsequent change, removal or substitution shall be made with respect to any such 
subcontractor without the prior written approval of UTA. 

10.3 Consultant shall be solely responsible for making payments to subcontractors, and such 
payments shall be made within thirty (30) days after Consultant receives corresponding 
payments from UTA. 

10.4 Consultant shall be responsible for and direct all Work performed by subcontractors.  

10.5 Consultant agrees that no subcontracts shall provide for payment on a cost-plus-
percentage-of-cost basis. Consultant further agrees that all subcontracts shall comply with 
all applicable laws. 

ARTICLE 11.0  
Key Personnel 

11.1 Consultant shall provide the key personnel as indicated in Consultant’s Proposal (or other 
applicable provisions of this Contract), and shall not change any of said key personnel 
without the express written consent of UTA. 

ARTICLE 12.0 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

7 

Suspension of Work 
12.1 UTA may, at any time, by written order to Consultant, require Consultant to suspend, 

delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work called for by this Contract. Any such order 
shall be specifically identified as a “Suspension of Work Order” issued pursuant to 
this Article. Upon receipt of such an order, Consultant shall immediately comply with its 
terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of further costs allocable to 
the Work covered by the order during the period of Work stoppage. 

12.2 If a Suspension of Work Order issued under this Article is canceled, Consultant shall 
resume Work as mutually agreed to in writing by the parties hereto. 

12.3 If a Suspension of Work Order is not canceled and the Work covered by such order is 
terminated for the convenience of UTA, reasonable costs incurred as a result of the 
Suspension of Work Order shall be considered in negotiating the termination settlement. 

12.4 If the Suspension of Work causes an increase in Consultant’s cost or time to perform the 
Work, UTA’s Project Manager or designee shall make an equitable adjustment to 
compensate Consultant for the additional costs or time, and modify this Contract by 
Change Order. 

ARTICLE 13.0 
Termination for Convenience; Termination for Cause and Default Remedies 

13.1 UTA shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time by providing written 
notice to Consultant. If this Contract is terminated for convenience, UTA shall pay 
Consultant its costs and a reasonable profit on work performed up to the effective date of the 
termination notice, plus costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by Consultant to effect 
such termination. UTA shall not be responsible for anticipated profits based on Work not 
performed as of the effective date of termination.  Consultant shall promptly submit a 
termination claim to UTA. If Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to 
UTA, Consultant will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. 

13.2 If Consultant materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, and 
such failure is not cured or a cure initiated to the satisfaction of UTA within ten (10) days 
after receipt of written notice from UTA, UTA may, at its discretion: 

A. Terminate this Contract (in whole or in part) for default and complete the Work 
using other contractors or UTA’s own forces, in which event Consultant shall be 
liable for all incremental costs so incurred by UTA; 

B. Pursue other remedies available under this Contract (regardless of whether the 
termination remedy is invoked); and/or 

C. Except to the extent limited by this Contract, pursue other remedies available at 
law.  

Upon receipt of a termination notice as provided above, Consultant shall (i) immediately 
discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); (ii) deliver to UTA 
all data, drawings and other deliverables, whether completed or in process; and (iii) if 
Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to UTA, account for the same, 
and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. Consultant shall remit a final invoice for all 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

8 

services performed and expenses incurred in full accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Contract up to the effective date of termination. UTA shall calculate termination 
damages payable under this Contract, shall offset such damages against Consultant’s 
final invoice, and shall invoice Consultant for any additional amounts payable by 
Consultant (to the extent termination damages exceed the invoice). All rights and 
remedies provided in this Article are cumulative and not exclusive. 

13.3 If UTA terminates this Contract for any reason, Consultant shall remain available, for a 
period not exceeding 90 days, to UTA to respond to any questions or concerns that UTA 
may have regarding the Work completed by Consultant prior to termination.   

ARTICLE 14.0 
Information, Records, and Reports; Audit Rights 

14.1 Consultant shall retain all books, papers, documents, accounting records and other 
evidence to support any cost-based billings allowable under Exhibit B (or any other 
provision of this Contract). Such records shall include, without limitation, time sheets 
and other cost documentation related to the performance of labor services, as well as 
subcontracts, purchase orders, other contract documents, invoices, receipts or other 
documentation supporting non-labor costs. Consultant shall also retain other books and 
records related to the performance, quality or management of this Contract and/or 
Consultant’s compliance with this Contract. Records shall be retained by Consultant for 
a period of at least six (6) years after completion of the Work, or until any audit initiated 
within that six-year period has been completed (whichever is later). During this six-year 
period, such records shall be made available at all reasonable times for audit and 
inspection by UTA and other authorized auditing parties including, but not limited to, the 
Federal Transit Administration. Copies of requested records shall be furnished to UTA 
or designated audit parties upon request. Consultant agrees that it shall flow-down (as a 
matter of written contract) these records requirements to all subcontractors utilized in the 
performance of the Work at any tier. 

ARTICLE 15.0 
Findings Confidential 

15.1 Any documents, reports, information, or other data and materials available to or prepared 
or assembled by Consultant or subcontractors under this Contract are considered 
confidential and shall not be made available to any person, organization, or entity by 
Consultant without consent in writing from UTA. 

15.2 It is hereby agreed that the following information is not considered to be confidential: 

A. Information already in the public domain; 

B. Information disclosed to Consultant by a third party who is not under a 
confidentiality obligation; 

C. Information developed by or in the custody of Consultant before entering into this 
Contract; 

D. Information developed by Consultant through its work with other clients; and 

E. Information required to be disclosed by law or regulation including, but not limited 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

9 

to, subpoena, court order or administrative order. 

ARTICLE 16.0 
General Indemnification and Insurance  

16.1 For the duration of this Contract, Consultant shall maintain at its own expense, and 
provide proof of said insurance to UTA, the following types of insurance: 

A. Professional Liability insurance with the following limits and coverages: 

Minimum Limits:  

$1,000,000 each claim 

$2,000,000 annual aggregate  

Coverages: Indemnifies Consultant against loss arising from claims of alleged 
wrongful acts committed in the performance of professional services. 

16.2 Consultant shall furnish UTA with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent 
approved by UTA) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance 
policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf. All certificates are to be received by UTA before work commences.  Each 
insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to commencement 
of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  Failure 
to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of 
renewal is a material breach of contract.  

16.3 UTA, as a self-insured governmental entity, shall not be required to provide insurance 
coverage for the risk of loss to UTA premises and improvements or equipment owned by 
UTA. 

ARTICLE 18.0 
Independent Contractor 

18.1 Consultant is an independent contractor and agrees that its personnel will not represent 
themselves as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of UTA by reason of this Contract. 
Consultant is responsible to provide and pay the cost of all its employees' benefits. 

ARTICLE 19.0 
Prohibited Interest 

19.1 No member, officer, agent, or employee of UTA during his or her tenure or for one year 
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, including prospective employment by 
Consultant in this Contract or the proceeds thereof without specific written authorization 
by UTA. 

ARTICLE 20.0 
Dispute Resolution 

20.1 The parties shall attempt to informally resolve all claims, counterclaims and other 
disputes through the escalation process described below. No party may bring a legal 
action to enforce any term of this Contract without first having exhausted such process. 

 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

10 

20.2 The time schedule for escalation of disputes, including disputed requests for Change 
Order, shall be as follows: 

Level of Authority    Time Limit 
UTA’s Project Manager/Consultant’s Project Manager Five calendar days 

UTA’s SECOND LEVEL/Consultant’s SECOND LEVEL Five calendar days 

UTA’s THIRD LEVEL/Consultant’s THIRD LEVEL Five calendar days 
Unless otherwise directed by UTA’s Project Manager, Consultant shall diligently 
continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved. 

20.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved informally in accordance with the escalation procedures 
set forth above, than either party may commence legal action in accordance with the 
venue and law provisions of this Contract. If mutually agreed, the parties may also submit 
the dispute to arbitration or mediation. 

ARTICLE 21 
Successors and Assignees 

21.1 Consultant shall not assign, sublet, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any interest 
in this Contract without prior written approval of UTA, and any attempted transfer in 
violation of this restriction shall be void. 

ARTICLE 22.0 
Nonwaiver 

22.1 No failure or waiver or successive failures or waivers on the part of either party in the 
enforcement of any condition, covenant, or article of this Contract shall operate as a 
discharge of any such condition, covenant, or article nor render the same invalid, nor impair 
the right of either party to enforce the same in the event of any subsequent breaches by the 
other party. 

ARTICLE 23.0 
Notices or Demands 

23.1 Any formal notice or demand to be given by one party to the other shall be given in 
writing by one of the following methods:  (i) hand delivered; (ii) deposited in the mail, 
properly stamped with the required postage; (iii) sent via registered or certified mail; or 
(iv) sent via recognized overnight courier service.  All such notices shall be addressed as 
follows: 

If to UTA:  

Utah Transit Authority 

ATTN: Teressa Pickett 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 
 
 
 
 
 

with a required copy to:  
Utah Transit Authority 
ATTN: Legal Counsel 

669 West 200 South 
Salt Lake City, UT 84101 

 



 

 
UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016     
  
 

11 

If to Consultant:  
J. P. Morgan Securities 
ATTN: Antti Suhonen 
10 S Dearborn, Floor 16 
Chicago, IL 60603 

 

23.2 Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given, and shall be effective, on delivery 
to the notice address then applicable for the party to which the notice is directed; 
provided, however, that refusal to accept delivery of a notice or the inability to deliver a 
notice because of an address change which was not properly communicated shall not 
defeat or delay the giving of a notice. Either party may change the address at which such 
party desires to receive written notice by providing written notice of such change to any 
other party. 

23.3 Notwithstanding Section 23.1, the parties may, through mutual agreement, develop 
alternative communication protocols to address change notices, requests for information 
and similar categories of communications.  Communications provided pursuant to such 
agreed means shall be recognized as valid notices under this Contract  

ARTICLE 24.0 
Contract Administrator 

24.1 UTA’s Contract Administrator for this Contract is Teressa Pickett, or designee. All 
questions and correspondence relating to the contractual aspects of this Contract 
should be directed to said Contract Administrator, or designee. 

ARTICLE 25.0 
General Provisions 

25.1 Neither this Contract nor any interest herein may be assigned, in whole or in part, by 
either party hereto without the prior written consent of the other party, except that without 
securing such prior consent, either party shall have the right to assign this Contract to any 
successor or to such party by way of merger or consolidation or acquisition of 
substantially all of the entire business and assets of such party relating to the subject 
matter of this Contract, provided that such successor shall expressly assume all of the 
obligations and liabilities of such party under this Contract, and provided further, that 
such party shall remain liable and responsible to the other party hereto for the 
performance and observance of all such obligations. 

25.2 This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the substantive and procedural laws 
of the State of Utah. Any litigation between the parties arising out of or relating to this 
Contract will be conducted exclusively in federal or state courts in the State of Utah and 
Consultant consents to the jurisdiction of such courts. 

25.3 The headings of the articles, clauses, and sections of this Contract are inserted for reference 
purposes only and are not restrictive as to content. 

25.4 The parties enter in to this Contract for the sole benefit of the parties, in exclusion of any 
third party, and no third party beneficiary is intended or created by the execution of this 



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
12 

Contract. 

25.5 Any provision of this Contract prohibited or rendered unenforceable by operation of law 
shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without 
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Contract. 

25.6 This Contract shall constitute the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede all offers, negotiations and other 
agreements with respect thereto.   

25.7 Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and executed by the authorized 
representatives of each party.  

25.8 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the parties 
hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an 
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 
Any signature page of this Contract may be detached from any counterpart and reattached 
to any other counterpart hereof.  The electronic transmission of a signed original of this 
Contract or any counterpart hereof and the retransmission of any signed facsimile 
transmission hereof shall be the same as delivery of an original. 

25.9 Provisions of this Contract intended by their nature and content to survive termination of 
this Contract shall so survive including, but not limited to, Articles 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 
19, 20 and 25. 

ARTICLE 26.0 
Incorporated Documents 

26.1 UTA’s RFP 19-03036TP including all federal clauses and other attachments, and 
Consultant’s Proposal, are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Contract, except 
to the extent that such documents were changed or altered by subsequent negotiations as 
indicated by the terms of this Contract, including Exhibits A and B.  



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
13

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Contract as of the day and year 
first above written. 

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY: J.P. MORGAN SECURITIES: 
By_______________________ By_______________________ 

Carolyn M. Gonot Name____________________

Executive Director Title_____________________ 

By______________________ By_______________________ 

 Robert K. Biles Name____________________ 

  Chief Financial Officer Title_____________________ 

Approved as to form and content 

____________________  

Michael Bell 

Assistant Attorney General 

UTA Counsel  

Antti Suhonen
Executive Director



UTA Professional Services Contract – Cost Plus Fixed Fee - Rev. 9/14/2016 
14 

Exhibit A – General Scope of Services 

The specific statement of work for each underwriting project shall be contained in a separate 
Task Order which becomes an addendum to this Master PSA.  

Exhibit B – Consideration 

Costs for underwriting services as described in the RFP.  Specific costs and milestone payments 
shall be described in the individual Task Orders which become addendums to this Master PSA.  



This is a contract between UTA and J.P.Morgan Securities, LLC for Bond Underwriting services for the 

issuance of any new money bonds as well as refundings associated with outstanding bonds.  JPMorgan is 

one of three bond underwriting firms in the pool of firms from which UTA may select for upcoming bond 

issues.  Depending upon the size of a bond issue, UTA may use one or all of the firms to achieve the 

lowest true interest rate.  Fees for JPMorgan (see the table below) are based upon the type and size of 

the bond issue.  Present plans are for a $69.6 million new bond issue.  Due to lower interest rates, a 

refunding may be possible. 

Bond underwriters become a member of UTA’s financing team for designated bond issues providing 

input regarding the structure and terms of bond issues, financing tools or strategies that may benefit 

UTA, and disclosure requirements.  Their services include developing a marketing plan to assure that the 

issue is priced at prevailing market rates to UTA’s advantage, if required, providing capital to underwrite 

unsold balances, and executing the bond sale. 

 

Proposed Underwriter's Fees 

 $50 Million Transaction(1) $100 Million $250 Million $500 Million 
Underwriter's 
Discount Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 Total $/1,000 

Takedown $100,000  $2.000  $175,000  $1.750  $437,500  $1.750  $875,000  $1.750  

Expenses             36,174  0.723      41,647  0.416 
     
56,508  0.226 

     
80,368  0.161 

DALCOMP Fee               3,511  0.070        6,810  0.068 
     
17,153  0.069 

     
33,485  0.067 

CUSIP Fee               1,027  0.021        1,027  0.010 
       
1,027  0.004 

       
1,027  0.002 

DayLoan                  836  0.017        3,011  0.030 
       
7,528  0.030 

     
15,057  0.030 

DTC Fee                  800  0.016           800  0.008           800  0.003           800  0.002 
Underwriter's 
Counsel             25,000  0.500      25,000  0.250 

     
25,000  0.100 

     
25,000  0.050 

Travel & Out-of-
Pocket               5,000  0.100        5,000  0.050 

       
5,000  0.020 

       
5,000  0.010 

Total $136,174  $2.723  $216,647  $2.166  $494,008  $1.976  $955,368  $1.911  

         

         
                                      
(1) Assumes sole managed transactions. 
                                      
(2) Assumes minimum of 50% liability to senior manager.  

 



Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)* Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Supply Chain Yes 19-03086

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Contract

Original

6861

19-03086BM Comprehensive Specilaized

Transportation Plan-- UTA Contract RLS Signed 8-

23-19.pdf

5.86MB

Req 6861.pdf 204.92KB

Development of a Comprehensive Specialized Transportation Plan

RLS and Associates, Inc.

This is a contract for the development of a Comprehensive, Specialized
Transportation Plan. RLS and Associates, Inc., is the contractor for these services.
The total cost of the project will be $247,577.32 and the contract completion date
is by September 12, 2020.

The UTA Coordinated Mobiity Department was awarded $250,000 from the Utah
State Legislature in the 2019 Session to develop a Comprehenive Specialized
Transportation Plan.

A plan developed with consensus from key stakeholders across the Wasatch Front
is needed to propose a solution for identified human service transportation gaps
for seniors and persons with disabilities. This plan will not focus on low-income
populations although many in the cited populations have limited income. The plan
will include incremental steps that can be carried out over time with corresponding
costs outlined for each step. Many of the tactics in the plan may have the ability to
be adapted for rural areas once they are fully implemented on the Wasatch Front.

Motes, Brian Allen, Christy

Beginning

9/12/2019
Ending

9/12/2020
Services RFP (Best-value)

2 249,585.00

12 0
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement

0.00$ 0.00$ 247,577.32$
$ 247,577.32$



Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*
Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?* 3)Risk Review*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

One-time Recurring

Yes No

2905.5035
3.92 NA

Local
Yes

No

250,000.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No Steele, Bryan

Yes No Benvegnu, Michael

Yes No

Yes No

Taylor, Ryan Glen Beveridge, Cherryl A

Cumins, Donald E Gonot, Carolyn

Print this page

























































Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Please Specify*

Procurement Method* Number of Responding Firms

Value of Next Lowest Bidder Base Contract Term (Months)*

Contract Options (Months)*
Extension

Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*

Supply Chain Yes 19-02992

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Contract

Original

None

19-02992 Grainger Contract Combined.pdf 1.54MB

Vendor Managed Shop Supply Contract

WW Grainger

This is a contract between UTA and WW Grainger to supply all agency
requirements for shop supplies to UTA operations, maintenance and administrative
staff. The contract is for 5 years with an estimated annual volume of $1,571,378
and a total contract estimate of $7,856,890 over 5 years. Specific product pricing
for high volume items was proposed as part of the bid, as well as percentage
discounts on other items based on commodity. The previous contract was with
Fastenal and expires on 7/31/2019.

Grainger will implement Vendor Managed Inventory (VMI) to manage and replenish
consignment inventory of all on-site stock. This will include multiple point-of-use
vending machines at 8 UTA maintenance shops, as well as additional product
stored in each parts room. All nuts, bolts, and other hardware will be purchased at
the time of stocking, as well as any special orders that come by email or website.

Invoices will be paid using a P-card at all locations. All dollar amounts listed are
estimates of possible overall contract spend.

Burton, Amanda Burton, Amanda

Beginning

7/10/2019
Ending

7/31/2024
Other On Demand

RFP (Best-value) 3

60

0
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement

$ $ 7,856,890.00$
$ 1,571,378.00$

One-time Recurring

Yes No



How was the estimate
calculated?*

Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

Based on previous contract 12 month usage times new contracted dollar
amounts.

Varies
across
department
s none

Local
Yes

No

1,571,378.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Burton, Amanda Mills, Todd

Cumins, Donald E Gonot, Carolyn

Print this page



������������	
��		���������������������������� ������! "#�$%&'�()*�+)(,�-#�.##���/0�1�2/��32456��21�/736�8*� �9%-&����� �����"�������*���: ��;#"�%�"#����#�& .���<���#�5� �#��<�1� �*��#�#�� <�#���#<#��#"���� ��1�2*� �"�=>=>�?� ��:#�*�/#�#�� <�#���#<#��#"���� ��?� ��:#�����@���� ����>��� AB��C��C�DE��=/03025*�1�2���&����#"�9��9�� &�����3#F%#���<���G��9�� &�H3IGJ�(,K)+,,+2L�<���M#�"���! � :#"���&%������ �"�5��9��%99&�#���=/03025*�@���� ������%-!���#"���#�!���� "N �� :#�%���#�9����N#�9��9�� &�<�����#��#�N��#��&���#"��#�#��� �"���.����.�&&��:� �"� -&#�����%99&'�� �"��#�N��#�*� �"��=/03025*�1�2� ��#9���@���� ������9��9�� &� ��9��9��#"����3IG*�!�"�<�� ������ ��#9�#"�����#:��� ������ �"����������� ���� N#���#��#�N��#��9��N�"#"� ���"#���<�#"��#�#��>��47=*��/030I730*���������"#� ������<���#�!%�% &�9��!��#�� �"����#��:��"� �"�N &% -&#������"#� ����� ���#��<������#�#��*������� :�##"�-#�.##����#�9 ���#�O���(P����������QC�R��S���CE��@���� ���9#�<��! ��#��� &&�-#�<��!������ �����:���:�����%:�� �"����&%"��:�$%&'�T(��*�+)+U���+>� Q�B�CE����#�9���#����-#�9 �"�-'�1�2�<�����#��#�N��#���"#���<�#"��#�#������ ���<<#�#"�-'�@���� ��������3IG�(,K)++,+� �"���#�!�"�<�� ������ ��#9�#"�����#:��� ������ �� ��#9�#"������#� �� ��#"�2��#9� ��#��<�7<<#�V2. �"��<�@���� ��>��T>� �C�S����W����WB�B���E������� . �"�����%!! �#����#�@���� ���.���������������<���#��#�!�� �"�@��"��������<���#�3IG*� �'�2!#�"!#���������#�3IG� �"�'�%��7<<#�>��4�����#������� ��% &�"��%!#�������#�#�� �'>����������������







����������	
��������������
��������� 	�
���	����� �������������������� ���!"!� #$� %&'�������� �()**+!� #$� %&'�,+-.��-.�/0��*�12++!� #$345(,67� %&'�8+9:�()**+!� #$345(,67� %&'�12+2"�4�!"�;9�!� #$� %&'�,+-.��-.�/0��*�8+9:�()**+!� #$� %&'�59�:+- !� </=5>(5663#$� %?'�=2�!*��*�-"�� �59�:)2�*!� </=5>(5663#$� %?'�@9A*BC��+9!!*!� $D1� %?'�E-�"F�")9� *�"+2B)���!"!� D1D� %&'�(��*�G�-!)*!� �D� %&'�D+*9�*��")*.�"9+!� H5;I72- )��-C� JJ'�@9A*BC�(*9�� D1D�@,857>� %?'�;9��B�$9�F*�!�9++�"2+2�!� 4CF*.� %K'�/AA�"*�@-::+�*!� =,� L'�D-!)�2��D+9.:!� H@M� %K'�6-N��"9�B!� D1D� L'�O9"--.��A�+B*�!� 49CB2�I1� ��� %P'�8��!B�,���@-::+�*!� </=5>(566� %?'�<22F�9���622:�(2Q*����!"!� @D/7D<IG1M75� %&'�@"�*R!� �S@@577� #L'�=-B!� �S@@577� #L'�N2+B!� �S@@577� #L'�;��!�TD2BB*�3D+*Q�!342R*+3@:��� 3B9:*�3 �22Q*U� 1* *�"C� #L'�@"�-N�@:2� *!� @D/7D<IG1M75� %P'�;9��B�G�-!)*!� �D� %#'�@:�9C�;9��B� 45$IV/75� %#'�(��B*���+2Q*!� </=5>(566� %?'�=�B��+*�;9+.��+2Q*!� =�B��+*� %?'�=�B��+*�509.���9�*�;2R�*��8�**���!:2!9N+*� +2Q*!� =�B��+*� %?'�S�+��*��@B�9� )B�D-AA�*.N2!!*��=�B��+*�"29B*�� +2Q*!� =�B��+*� %?'�<�O�!�>*++2R��+2Q*!� D/=4/1� %?'�6*9B)*��R2�F��+2Q*!� D/=4/1� %?'�D2R)��*�-�+��*�� +2Q*!� D/=4/1� %?'�;-BBC�V��A*!�,++�!�W*!� (5@7(,14� %K'�D9:!�9���;+- !� (5@7(,14� =,�62"F�� �D9N+*�B�*!� (5@7(,14� J#'�D29B*��,N�9!�Q*!� #$� %&'�=2��D29B*��,N�9!�Q*!� #$� %&'�722+!�N2B)�:2R*��9���<9��� �D� %%'3%K'�4��++�G�B!� M�R��I�D� L'�79:*�T$9!F�� 34-"B3�SO�1*!�!B9�B3;9"F�� 3�5+*"B��"9+3�A+9  �� 3�*B"XXU� #$� L'�SB�+�BC�G+9�*!� @B9�+*C� %K'��



������� �������	
������� ���� ������������ �������
�� ������������������������� ���� !�"��!�#$$%&'()*�+,%�-$&%'.�/01� 2,3-� �4� �5����6���� �7��8��������� �9��9�:&,3/�;',1-'.<1.0+�=%-'<0>'� ��$?�@)('� �4� �5�����86���� ABCD ����� 9A� 9A���E���<',&�%0<+$<,(&'�+,.103)&,1'�F'<+0.,1$.� A�31�:$G� �4� �5����6�A�� �BH ����� �������� ����=%-'<0>'�:&,3/�+$&I).'1-,J'�� ����4K� �4� �5������6����  L#M8������A�� ��9���D.NO'�P,.%'J'.�@)('� A68�$?� �4� �5������6�8�� �BP=������ 88� P0�Q1.'J*1-����Q+.,I�=%-'<0>'� �86��$?�='.$<$&�3,J��4� �5����6���� �4=������A�88� :&,3/�P0�@'O+�M,</'1�Q0&03$J'� �$?�1)('� �4� �5������6���� AD@R���9A�� 9� A��� !G�����A!��2�*.''J�D$.+<�Q10/01�H.$%)310$J�Q-''1� :$G� �4� �5��86���� AR;D����A 8� H:�:K=Q@2F�H'J'1.,10J*�3,1,&I<1� ��$?�Q+.,I�3,J� :K=Q@2F� �5�����A6� ��  KFR9������ �� K�"K�PCA���S.,J*'�C'<1� 2,3-� DSE#SF� �5�����A6�9�� ��LE ���A�� ���9� E���#0<+$<,(&'�H,.103)&,1'�F'<+0.,1$.�;��=%T�J$<'�D&0+� AD@� �4� �5����6�A�� �BH ���������C��� �!"9!�H.'�4$0<1'J'%�&'J<�D&',J0J*�@$U'&'11'<� +,3/,*'�$V��� DSE#SF� �5������6����   "��9����A�A8�  !G��W�:�9 �L'&&$U�.'V&'310>'�&,('&<� ��W�.$&&� :F=#L� �5��969��� �"P2�����AA���  !G���W�U-01'�&,('&�::H����0J%$$.�$)1%$$.�Q1,J%,.%� ���W�.$&&� :F=#L� �5AA�6� �� �74FA�������������A� ��!�G���!�S0&�P',>I�U'0*-1�S0&�H&)<�Q$.('J1�H,%� 3,<'�$V�����:F=#L�QHD�=:QSF:2E@Q� �5���96A��� �7X�8� �� �8�� P0�H.'<<).'�M.',<'� � �S?� Q@=�K7:2� �5����� 6���� �2CX����� �9�� @.0**'.�R.''?'�Q+.,I� �A$?� DFD� �5����6����  LHB �����A��� YJ<1,�Q$&>�%'*.',<'.� � $?� DFD� �5������6����  LHZ8�����98�� #.I�R0&O�K)(.03,J1�='.$<$&� ��$?�D,J� DFD� �5������68A��  Z:�����A8�� R$$%�M.,%'�Q0&03$J'�K)(.03,J1� ��$?�D,J� DFD� �5����� 6�A�� �22#8���A��� D$J1,31�D&',J'.�A���� ��$?�='.$<$&� DFD� �5��� 6�8�� �A;��8�����AA8� :.,/'�3&',J'.�E$J�D-&$.0J,1'%� A�$?�='.$<$&� M7EB� �5�����A6���� �4HX ��8��������  �� 9$?�;-01'�3$VV''�V.',O<�+.0J1�H,+'.�+$&I'1-'&'J'�%0G0'�3)+<� 3,<'�$V������ #Y"Y2� �5��8A6 8�� ��ZA�9��8���9����  �� 9�$?6�;-01'�Q,*'�+.0J1�+&,<103�+,+'.�3)+<�-$1� 3,<'�$V������ #Y"Y2� �5��  68��� �9C99A��A8�8������� 4SKLBS@2����S.0J*�M.',<'� �6�$?�@)('� Q7H2F�K7:2� �5������6����  ��H� ��AA��98� #KA����K0�:,11'.I� 2,3-� MF=YEM2F�=HHFSC2#� �5������6A8�� AD7F8��A������ #�3'&&�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� �A�+,3/� #7F=D2KK� �5�����86�A�� �K2A���A����8� D�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� �A�+,3/� #7F=D2KK� �5������6�8�� �K2AA��A������ �C�H.$3'&&�=&/�:1.I� 2,3-� #7F=D2KK� �5���A6 A�� �K2A ��A 9���� HK�A��H.$3'&&�:1.I� 2,3-� #7F=D2KK� �5���86���� ��;�A���A����9� ==�3'&&�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� H,3/,*'�$V�A � #7F=D2KK� �5������6���� �K2A���A������ ===�H.$3'&&�=&/�:,11'.I� H,3/,*'�$V�A � #7F=D2KK� �5������6���� �K2A��



�������� �	
����������������
��	���������	������ !�"
���	�#
	!	� ��$���%� &�'�#� �(������)*��� +�',���-+��� �.�/0�1
��	����	2� �
 �� &345��11� �(�����+)�*�� 61����-�-+�+�� 7��
��������������
��	�8�����9�-� /
����� 70157,� �(������)���� ��:;6�-�-��*�� "��4�<�� ������	� "��4�<�� �(��+*)���� �:=*��*�-��-��� ����5�
�2����'��� ������%�����>��	�
������� �� �� ��-�-����� 7��	�#
$��
�����
�	�	8���� �---#1���?� /�=�� �(��+*)���� 6�43����6--�-9������� /�=��@
��	
���
���0��� �,
�����
�	�/
����� /�=�� �(����)���� ��.+-*����-�9-�-�+� /
�!��7
�
��� �-#1���%� ,�1�#54� �(����)�+�� ��0+���**6��-+�� =�2��������
�������� ��� ��)��$� &5;@� �(����)6��� �=�<6�**6��-�*� '	����0��	
��������� ����$�5	����� 
��1AB3A&�;4�@�,� �(������)*��� ��3����**�-����� A7�"1�:�1&7������ �
���1�%	� 
��� +--����%� �� �� ��**�-����� A7�"1�:����
��@�5�6��1�%	� 
��� +--����%� �� �� ��-���+�-� /	
88�����4���	� /
����� '43&�'3���4� �(���+)�6�� �-'-���-���+6�� 5	�����/�����;����A��C�?��#
����69�
����
���� ����$�5	����� 
����3/,�/3���(������)*+�� +;/���-�-�++*� &���������	�0	�� ����4�%%	�$�����	 �
�� �-��<� &301A9��1�4� �(������)�6�� ���#�*�-�6-6��� ,����0	8�	�
� �'	2��$�#�����0�	����1�%	� 
��� ��$� 1���A��� �(��+�)�*�� +:<�*���66�� 730�4�"1�:��144�.��--#1� �-)���$� 
	��1���A��� �(���+)���� �'#�����+-+� �����,4&1�'4��-��� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)-��� 6���+�-�6-���� �*-��,4&1�'�4��-���� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(���-)+��� 6�����-�6-+66� �*+�6-#1������������ !�����	
����	
��� !	� 6-���%�����1���A��� �(���*)���� 6�����-�6*�+-� ����,������	�������	
��� !	� *������ !� 1���A��� �(���-)�6�� �336��-�6-��*� ������	
��� !	��������	����� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)6��� �'�+��-��-�-�� 6���/�
���7
�
��� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(����)���� +*�4*6�-��-�--� 6�������
�����	
���
�
����C0�"�� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(�����+)���� +*�4�6����6�� #�
��#
�� �7��� +��<� 1���A��� �(����)�6�� 6���6�**�*����� �9�-3��,2�������?2�5������ 6-�#��&�
�� 
	�	���� 1���A��� �(����)�*�� �.4,*������� 6*����
 !�������	�8�	�
� �4������� ��� �--�#1� 1���A��� �(����)�+�� ��<������6��� ������/
�!��4���	� ���$� 1���A��� �(����)--�� +'#6����+--� �+��4���
%����	
��� !	� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)-��� 65������6�*� 5���9��$���	���������	��
�2����2���%	� 
��� ���$� 1���A��� �(����)-��� �=&@+�-�6*���� 0�	�����7���	��	
��/�	
����	����5���97�$�1�%	� 
��� �-����� !� 1���A��� �(�����+)���� �3366���+*+� 7��	�"�?�4��4�.�7��� ��� ���$� 1���A��� �(������)���� 6�������6+*� 7��	8�?���
	�4�.�
������ �)��$���%� 1���A��� �(�����+)6*�� �'#���-�6*���� �+��#����	
��� !	� *����� !� 1���A��� �(���-)�6�� �336��-��-�-�� 6�����	
���
�
��������0�"�� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(���6)�+�� +*�4���



������ �����	
�����������������	�	��������������� � �!��"#� !$%�&�'� �(��) *���� )�+�,�� )� �  � �,������-�������	����	������ ) ���.�����!$%�&�'� �(��) *,��� ��/��� )� ���� , )��"�����	����	�	0�	��������-��	0� �
��"#� !$%�&�'� �(������*���� ��1�)������� ,�,���	��*���
���"#� �  
��"#� !$%�&�'� �(������*���� �2���������))�� ) ��3�	������������#�4�
���� ) �5��"#� �� �� ��)  � ,,� ����������6"7�1����	�-�2���#�4� '���� �%���21'�/��(�����,*���� �'!�)�)�� �6 ) ��� �&��&%��'�2!��$�'��&&� 7	��� �2���2�&%� �(������* ��� �/�,��)��, 6   �)� $���
�����4������6��8!�9	��������	0�8����#������-�:�2���
�� '���� %$;<$�� �(������*�,�� ��/;����)  )��� <$�����"7����04�<"�4�.����1�"	-� ������� �/�$&!� �(��)�*���� ,;���� ���)��� �*)�5�."����1"��%����� �*)�$5�%��	��� 3'!!'�� �(������*���� �=��)� � )���� )�>�3	�-��	�-��7��
?�@"
� '���� �2!!$�/� �(������*���� ),�����)�� �6  ���� ���""���"�7�$	��� ���$5� ��#	��	�� �(����*� �� ��=,��� �)��� � �	�	����!"#�	����� )��$5�2����������%�%� �(�����,*���� )�.A�� �))���� � >�3��-�9	����������-���7����-�� '���� �$:����:/��(�����,* ��� )�+.)� �))�,�� B�,�C)��5D�,�7�4�9�	���������#��-�@"	�������
���7���-� '���� �:..'��2&<� �(�����,*���� ��/��� ,�,�,�� �6�?��>�����.��9��"�� '���� ��''<2&�'� �(������*���� )A:<��)��, 6  )� � ����'���	�
���	���.����� � �5�2������ �:��6$!':�� �(������*���� ,/!%��)�� �6  ���� ������.�-��� 6), �2<� � ��#�#�
� .2!!$�&;&� �(����*  �� �3�� �)�� �6  ���� ����E���
���"#6�� ),*���5� �:�'��!:.'� �(��))*�,�� ,,;����) ���6 )���� <���"�-�2������� ������� �:;;/�&<'� �(������*���� � A��,����  � 2���<	���	���<	�7��	�
�1����F"	���%"�� )��5����� <2�� �(�����,*�,�� ��'���)�� �6 ) ��� ���)�, ���$3'����2%���9�4������������� � �7��#����� .��-9	��1	����� �(����*���� ,+'1,��� ), 6)�),,�� <	�	����	�
�%�����3	7�� ������� ��� �(��,�*���� ��.� �)�� �6  �),� .������	��<	�	�������� ������� �&;'6�$!� �(����*���� ��< ����)  ),�� ���"��������	�
�1�"	-� ))��5� �/�$&!� �(�����)*,��� �)2 � � ��, ) � � >G)   �H� ����'G7����������������9��7�9	���G��--��������-��� )   ��������� ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(������*,,�� )�2� �� �� �,�� <	�	��������7��4�����<���-�<� )�*��5�2�����������$:����:/��(������*,)�� ��%3 ,�) ��,��� <	��	��-�3���� �!	���� ��&� �(��)�*���� �)�'� � �)� ��� 3�	���.�6, ��-	���-����	��� )  ����"#� <'.� �(��� *���� ,��/,)��� ���6)�),��� .����� ������� �$:����:/��(�����,*���� ��;���� �� )�,� �G��,�	�������!<�'�������#��.�
�� �����
�)  � ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(����*�,�� �%;=�� �� )�)� ,G��,�	��������7�7����	��.�
� �����
�)  � ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(������*���� �+3,�� � ����� ��G���)*���	��.�����%����	���������#�
�*�88���04�<"�4�7��������� �������)  ��$:����:/��(��)�*���� �)<A��� � � ��� � >G��>� *��	��.����������	��%���!	��� ��������  ��$:����:/��(������*���� �)<A�����  ��6)�),,�� )��5������%"7����?���-� �������)   � <2��� �(���)*���� )��;��



������� �������	
������� ���� ������������ �������
�� ������������������������� ���� !�"��!�#$$%&'()*�+,%�-$&%'.�/01� 2,3-� �4� �5����6���� �7��8��������� �9��9�:&,3/�;',1-'.<1.0+�=%-'<0>'� ��$?�@)('� �4� �5�����86���� ABCD ����� 9A� 9A���E���<',&�%0<+$<,(&'�+,.103)&,1'�F'<+0.,1$.� A�31�:$G� �4� �5����6�A�� �BH ����� �������� ����=%-'<0>'�:&,3/�+$&I).'1-,J'�� ����4K� �4� �5������6����  L#M8������A�� ��9���D.NO'�P,.%'J'.�@)('� A68�$?� �4� �5������6�8�� �BP=������ 88� P0�Q1.'J*1-����Q+.,I�=%-'<0>'� �86��$?�='.$<$&�3,J��4� �5����6���� �4=������A�88� :&,3/�P0�@'O+�M,</'1�Q0&03$J'� �$?�1)('� �4� �5������6���� AD@R���9A�� 9� A��� !G�����A!��2�*.''J�D$.+<�Q10/01�H.$%)310$J�Q-''1� :$G� �4� �5��86���� AR;D����A 8� H:�:K=Q@2F�H'J'1.,10J*�3,1,&I<1� ��$?�Q+.,I�3,J� :K=Q@2F� �5�����A6� ��  KFR9������ �� K�"K�PCA���S.,J*'�C'<1� 2,3-� DSE#SF� �5�����A6�9�� ��LE ���A�� ���9� E���#0<+$<,(&'�H,.103)&,1'�F'<+0.,1$.�;��=%T�J$<'�D&0+� AD@� �4� �5����6�A�� �BH ���������C��� �!"9!�H.'�4$0<1'J'%�&'J<�D&',J0J*�@$U'&'11'<� +,3/,*'�$V��� DSE#SF� �5������6����   "��9����A�A8�  !G��W�:�9 �L'&&$U�.'V&'310>'�&,('&<� ��W�.$&&� :F=#L� �5��969��� �"P2�����AA���  !G���W�U-01'�&,('&�::H����0J%$$.�$)1%$$.�Q1,J%,.%� ���W�.$&&� :F=#L� �5AA�6� �� �74FA�������������A� ��!�G���!�S0&�P',>I�U'0*-1�S0&�H&)<�Q$.('J1�H,%� 3,<'�$V�����:F=#L�QHD�=:QSF:2E@Q� �5���96A��� �7X�8� �� �8�� P0�H.'<<).'�M.',<'� � �S?� Q@=�K7:2� �5����� 6���� �2CX����� �9�� @.0**'.�R.''?'�Q+.,I� �A$?� DFD� �5����6����  LHB �����A��� YJ<1,�Q$&>�%'*.',<'.� � $?� DFD� �5������6����  LHZ8�����98�� #.I�R0&O�K)(.03,J1�='.$<$&� ��$?�D,J� DFD� �5������68A��  Z:�����A8�� R$$%�M.,%'�Q0&03$J'�K)(.03,J1� ��$?�D,J� DFD� �5����� 6�A�� �22#8���A��� D$J1,31�D&',J'.�A���� ��$?�='.$<$&� DFD� �5��� 6�8�� �A;��8�����AA8� :.,/'�3&',J'.�E$J�D-&$.0J,1'%� A�$?�='.$<$&� M7EB� �5�����A6���� �4HX ��8��������  �� 9$?�;-01'�3$VV''�V.',O<�+.0J1�H,+'.�+$&I'1-'&'J'�%0G0'�3)+<� 3,<'�$V������ #Y"Y2� �5��8A6 8�� ��ZA�9��8���9����  �� 9�$?6�;-01'�Q,*'�+.0J1�+&,<103�+,+'.�3)+<�-$1� 3,<'�$V������ #Y"Y2� �5��  68��� �9C99A��A8�8������� 4SKLBS@2����S.0J*�M.',<'� �6�$?�@)('� Q7H2F�K7:2� �5������6����  ��H� ��AA��98� #KA����K0�:,11'.I� 2,3-� MF=YEM2F�=HHFSC2#� �5������6A8�� AD7F8��A������ #�3'&&�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� �A�+,3/� #7F=D2KK� �5�����86�A�� �K2A���A����8� D�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� �A�+,3/� #7F=D2KK� �5������6�8�� �K2AA��A������ �C�H.$3'&&�=&/�:1.I� 2,3-� #7F=D2KK� �5���A6 A�� �K2A ��A 9���� HK�A��H.$3'&&�:1.I� 2,3-� #7F=D2KK� �5���86���� ��;�A���A����9� ==�3'&&�H.$3'&&�=&/,&0J'�:,11'.I� H,3/,*'�$V�A � #7F=D2KK� �5������6���� �K2A���A������ ===�H.$3'&&�=&/�:,11'.I� H,3/,*'�$V�A � #7F=D2KK� �5������6���� �K2A��



�������� �	
����������������
��	���������	������ !�"
���	�#
	!	� ��$���%� &�'�#� �(������)*��� +�',���-+��� �.�/0�1
��	����	2� �
 �� &345��11� �(�����+)�*�� 61����-�-+�+�� 7��
��������������
��	�8�����9�-� /
����� 70157,� �(������)���� ��:;6�-�-��*�� "��4�<�� ������	� "��4�<�� �(��+*)���� �:=*��*�-��-��� ����5�
�2����'��� ������%�����>��	�
������� �� �� ��-�-����� 7��	�#
$��
�����
�	�	8���� �---#1���?� /�=�� �(��+*)���� 6�43����6--�-9������� /�=��@
��	
���
���0��� �,
�����
�	�/
����� /�=�� �(����)���� ��.+-*����-�9-�-�+� /
�!��7
�
��� �-#1���%� ,�1�#54� �(����)�+�� ��0+���**6��-+�� =�2��������
�������� ��� ��)��$� &5;@� �(����)6��� �=�<6�**6��-�*� '	����0��	
��������� ����$�5	����� 
��1AB3A&�;4�@�,� �(������)*��� ��3����**�-����� A7�"1�:�1&7������ �
���1�%	� 
��� +--����%� �� �� ��**�-����� A7�"1�:����
��@�5�6��1�%	� 
��� +--����%� �� �� ��-���+�-� /	
88�����4���	� /
����� '43&�'3���4� �(���+)�6�� �-'-���-���+6�� 5	�����/�����;����A��C�?��#
����69�
����
���� ����$�5	����� 
����3/,�/3���(������)*+�� +;/���-�-�++*� &���������	�0	�� ����4�%%	�$�����	 �
�� �-��<� &301A9��1�4� �(������)�6�� ���#�*�-�6-6��� ,����0	8�	�
� �'	2��$�#�����0�	����1�%	� 
��� ��$� 1���A��� �(��+�)�*�� +:<�*���66�� 730�4�"1�:��144�.��--#1� �-)���$� 
	��1���A��� �(���+)���� �'#�����+-+� �����,4&1�'4��-��� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)-��� 6���+�-�6-���� �*-��,4&1�'�4��-���� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(���-)+��� 6�����-�6-+66� �*+�6-#1������������ !�����	
����	
��� !	� 6-���%�����1���A��� �(���*)���� 6�����-�6*�+-� ����,������	�������	
��� !	� *������ !� 1���A��� �(���-)�6�� �336��-�6-��*� ������	
��� !	��������	����� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)6��� �'�+��-��-�-�� 6���/�
���7
�
��� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(����)���� +*�4*6�-��-�--� 6�������
�����	
���
�
����C0�"�� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(�����+)���� +*�4�6����6�� #�
��#
�� �7��� +��<� 1���A��� �(����)�6�� 6���6�**�*����� �9�-3��,2�������?2�5������ 6-�#��&�
�� 
	�	���� 1���A��� �(����)�*�� �.4,*������� 6*����
 !�������	�8�	�
� �4������� ��� �--�#1� 1���A��� �(����)�+�� ��<������6��� ������/
�!��4���	� ���$� 1���A��� �(����)--�� +'#6����+--� �+��4���
%����	
��� !	� �-�#1�%����� 1���A��� �(����)-��� 65������6�*� 5���9��$���	���������	��
�2����2���%	� 
��� ���$� 1���A��� �(����)-��� �=&@+�-�6*���� 0�	�����7���	��	
��/�	
����	����5���97�$�1�%	� 
��� �-����� !� 1���A��� �(�����+)���� �3366���+*+� 7��	�"�?�4��4�.�7��� ��� ���$� 1���A��� �(������)���� 6�������6+*� 7��	8�?���
	�4�.�
������ �)��$���%� 1���A��� �(�����+)6*�� �'#���-�6*���� �+��#����	
��� !	� *����� !� 1���A��� �(���-)�6�� �336��-��-�-�� 6�����	
���
�
��������0�"�� 6-#����%� 1���A��� �(���6)�+�� +*�4���



������ �����	
�����������������	�	��������������� � �!��"#� !$%�&�'� �(��) *���� )�+�,�� )� �  � �,������-�������	����	������ ) ���.�����!$%�&�'� �(��) *,��� ��/��� )� ���� , )��"�����	����	�	0�	��������-��	0� �
��"#� !$%�&�'� �(������*���� ��1�)������� ,�,���	��*���
���"#� �  
��"#� !$%�&�'� �(������*���� �2���������))�� ) ��3�	������������#�4�
���� ) �5��"#� �� �� ��)  � ,,� ����������6"7�1����	�-�2���#�4� '���� �%���21'�/��(�����,*���� �'!�)�)�� �6 ) ��� �&��&%��'�2!��$�'��&&� 7	��� �2���2�&%� �(������* ��� �/�,��)��, 6   �)� $���
�����4������6��8!�9	��������	0�8����#������-�:�2���
�� '���� %$;<$�� �(������*�,�� ��/;����)  )��� <$�����"7����04�<"�4�.����1�"	-� ������� �/�$&!� �(��)�*���� ,;���� ���)��� �*)�5�."����1"��%����� �*)�$5�%��	��� 3'!!'�� �(������*���� �=��)� � )���� )�>�3	�-��	�-��7��
?�@"
� '���� �2!!$�/� �(������*���� ),�����)�� �6  ���� ���""���"�7�$	��� ���$5� ��#	��	�� �(����*� �� ��=,��� �)��� � �	�	����!"#�	����� )��$5�2����������%�%� �(�����,*���� )�.A�� �))���� � >�3��-�9	����������-���7����-�� '���� �$:����:/��(�����,* ��� )�+.)� �))�,�� B�,�C)��5D�,�7�4�9�	���������#��-�@"	�������
���7���-� '���� �:..'��2&<� �(�����,*���� ��/��� ,�,�,�� �6�?��>�����.��9��"�� '���� ��''<2&�'� �(������*���� )A:<��)��, 6  )� � ����'���	�
���	���.����� � �5�2������ �:��6$!':�� �(������*���� ,/!%��)�� �6  ���� ������.�-��� 6), �2<� � ��#�#�
� .2!!$�&;&� �(����*  �� �3�� �)�� �6  ���� ����E���
���"#6�� ),*���5� �:�'��!:.'� �(��))*�,�� ,,;����) ���6 )���� <���"�-�2������� ������� �:;;/�&<'� �(������*���� � A��,����  � 2���<	���	���<	�7��	�
�1����F"	���%"�� )��5����� <2�� �(�����,*�,�� ��'���)�� �6 ) ��� ���)�, ���$3'����2%���9�4������������� � �7��#����� .��-9	��1	����� �(����*���� ,+'1,��� ), 6)�),,�� <	�	����	�
�%�����3	7�� ������� ��� �(��,�*���� ��.� �)�� �6  �),� .������	��<	�	�������� ������� �&;'6�$!� �(����*���� ��< ����)  ),�� ���"��������	�
�1�"	-� ))��5� �/�$&!� �(�����)*,��� �)2 � � ��, ) � � >G)   �H� ����'G7����������������9��7�9	���G��--��������-��� )   ��������� ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(������*,,�� )�2� �� �� �,�� <	�	��������7��4�����<���-�<� )�*��5�2�����������$:����:/��(������*,)�� ��%3 ,�) ��,��� <	��	��-�3���� �!	���� ��&� �(��)�*���� �)�'� � �)� ��� 3�	���.�6, ��-	���-����	��� )  ����"#� <'.� �(��� *���� ,��/,)��� ���6)�),��� .����� ������� �$:����:/��(�����,*���� ��;���� �� )�,� �G��,�	�������!<�'�������#��.�
�� �����
�)  � ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(����*�,�� �%;=�� �� )�)� ,G��,�	��������7�7����	��.�
� �����
�)  � ��2&;�'��2���$�'<� �(������*���� �+3,�� � ����� ��G���)*���	��.�����%����	���������#�
�*�88���04�<"�4�7��������� �������)  ��$:����:/��(��)�*���� �)<A��� � � ��� � >G��>� *��	��.����������	��%���!	��� ��������  ��$:����:/��(������*���� �)<A�����  ��6)�),,�� )��5������%"7����?���-� �������)   � <2��� �(���)*���� )��;��



�������� �����	�
������������������
������� ��������������� ������� � �����!�"#�� �$%&����#�#'���(�� �)�*������+��,-��-,������.-��'�/�
�������������0��,�� ����-���� 1�23�4��0��� �����#����� �!�5�!��(!��'���!�� +�-����67���'�����.�0���8����������������� ����-���� 9402�9�4�0++4:3�$� � ��"������ (%19�������!!� +3%�4���%����%&(�;�����'*������������	��� ���<� 8%4��0=��*�� ������(�� ��5"�����(!�!�� :���0��������:-������� �!������� �+�82��40��� � ��������"�� �4&;!��������� 0��'���	���7����>���7�<� "�	��������� 32�40'�2��� � �����#����� ��%=��������(�� ?�'87���-��@�4�
����<�7.��@���.��+����7���5��<���.-� ���	��7��� �2A12$��4��%5� � �����(����� ��93����#�#'��"(�� +4:1$�(��>0..���� 9����� �� �� ������"�(� 5�
������	���9��� ���	��������+14���� � ��(��(��� �(9#�(�����(�#� =��.�B�=�������-����@-�
���-��,7���<���������� ����	�0����������$0+� � �����(��!�� !��"����!��#� "��(6��3���,���������������������'�>")�<���<�� ���<� �:195�91*�� ��������(�� �+9�����(!"�(� 2�$�%5�9���5����:C� ���	��-��,�%�� 41��':��18� � �������#��� �&+(���������� $����9�������D����<���+��.��� ���	��-��,�%�� 41��':��18� � �����(����� �*�%(��������� 47��,�4�
�8��������-�D����-��.��� ���:	�0������������:+��41��� � �������(��� ��+4"#����#���� 5��/,�$7�,�������%������ ���	�0������� %4%� � ����������� �(+��#������"(� ��'�>��@���'�>��9��DD����4�.�/���������� (�����7�� 2���$*8:��� ����������� �5&!����("�'�(!"�� ���D'���<���9��,�+��.��� ���	��-��,�%�� 41��':��18� � �����(����� �*�%#��(!��'���!!� 9������9�
7���(� ���	��7��� �� �� ����#�#'��"�"� �!���2&0=��E��52��� �����=���	�%�����
��� $0+� � �����(�("�� ��;����(!��'���(�� �����=��@��!!����<���� (��8��� $0+� � �����(�("�� ��;�����#�#'��"��� �2&0=��E������52���������� ������	��7���� (8� � �����"�"��� ��1;!!���#�#'����"� ����D��@�0
<���/�F�5��������<� ������	��7���� $0+� � �����(�("�� ��;������(!('�(����� ��.-���9������67�
�%��������� !!�9����� �28+���94���� � ((!��"�� ��%�������(!�'�(����� ��.-���9������67�
�%��������� 9����� �28+���94���� � ����������� ��%������"!#���� �-����D�@�:������%���7��<7���0�������� ���������� �+2���=2E� � ��������� �!81#!�����!��� 4�����������4�	������
������-��� ���<� ��0���*� � �������!��� �4��������"#!� �!"'����"#!'�!0��7��� �!�	��������%4%� � �����(����� �(+�!��������#� +������7.�;���,�;�� �(�	� +5*�2%20��%04�� � ����������� (��;"����(��(� ����!#����	��$'��� ����	���� �$'��� � �����!����� ��;*������"�(�� �$����<�������<�7.�9������ ���	� �$'����+�%20�2��� � �������(!�� (�E4!#��(!��'���"�� ������7��<�55��+�7�� �����0�����������+40*:�� � �������#��� �&$E������##�� �,-���5�
��-��#!%�� #!�-���� �*+0��� � �������"��� �*%4������#�#� ���)@���")��,-0����E�����-�� ����%����@� �*+0��� � �������""�� �35+�������(�� ��"@����)�+�������
���@�$4%����������� ���������@� �*+0��� � �����#�"��� �3;%#�



��������� �	
����������������� ���������������� �	
�
���	���� !"� �#�����$%���� �&'����



Department* Existing Contract? Existing Contract Number*

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)* Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Supply Chain Yes 16-1846TP

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Change/Task Order

Original

3415
Change/Task Order

3415

Task Order #87 UDOT Queue Cutter Project.pdf 680.58KB

Price Analysis.pdf 185.67KB

UDOT Region 2 Queue Cutter Reimbursement

Agreement.pdf
3.99MB

16-1846TP Signed On-Call Maint SWI.pdf 6.7MB

On-Call Maintenance Stacy and Witbeck Task Order #87-UDOT Queue Cutter
Traffic Signal Project

Stacy and Witbeck

This is task order #87 to the current contract between UTA and Stacy and Witbeck
that was established on 12/30/2016 to perform pre-construction services,
construction management and a variety of maintenance tasks on UTA's transit
system. 
This task order is for the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT) Queue Cutter
Traffic Signal Project which will be interconnected to the railroad signals at several
locations. The scope of this task order is to add advance preemption time at five
locations to accommodate the installation of the queue cutter traffic signals by
1/31/2020. UDOT will reimburse UTA per Region 2 Queue Cutters Project
Reimbursement Agreement #199096 for the total cost of this task order which is
$281,797.00. This brings the total Stacy and Witbeck On-Call Maintenance
contract amount to $34,413,698 made up from 87 task orders since 2017. Each
task order is covered by multiple project budgets from 2017, 2018 and 2019.

Pickett, Teressa Dave Hancock

Beginning

12/30/2016
Ending

12/31/2019
Task Orders RFP

36 24
Option to Renew?* Yes

No

* Renewal Terms

Two - 1 year options

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement

34,131,901.00$ 281,797.00$ 34,413,698.00$
$ 281,797.00$



Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*
Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source* Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

One-time Recurring

Yes No

40-
3189.6891
2 MSP189

Federal/
Local

Yes

No

281,797.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Bell, Mike

Yes No Steele, Bryan

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Hancock, David W Hancock, David W

Cumins, Donald E Gonot, Carolyn M.

Print this page



On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT16-1846TP 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 87 
 

TASK ORDER NAME: Additional UDOT TRAX Queue Cutter Projects 
 

PROJECT CODE: MSP189 40-3189.68912 
 
This Task Order No. 87 to the On Call Maintenance Contract is entered into by and between Utah 
Transit Authority (UTA) and Stacy and Witbeck, Inc. (Contractor) as of December 30th, 2016. 
 
This Task Order is part of the On Call Maintenance Contract and is governed by the terms thereof. 
 
The purpose of this Task Order is to specifically define the scope, schedule, lump sum price, and 
other terms applicable to the work identified herein.  
 
UTA and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

1.0  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of work for the Task Order #87 is identified in Exhibit 1 – Scope of Work, which is 
hereby attached and incorporated into this Task Order.  

2.0  SCHEDULE 

The Substantial Completion Date for this Task is December 31st, 2019. The Revenue Operations 
Dates for this Task is December 31st, 2019. The Final Acceptance Date for this Task is 
December 31st, 2019. 

3.0  LUMP SUM PRICE 

The price for this task order is a not to exceed $281,797.00. Invoices will be billed on monthly 
basis for work completed to date. 

4.0  APPLICABILITY OF FEDERAL CLAUSES 

This Task Order does ☒ does not ☐ [Check Applicable] include federal assistance funds which 
requires the application of the Federal Clauses appended as Exhibit D to the On Call Maintenance 
Contract. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Task Order has been executed by UTA and the Contractor or its 
appointed representative 
 
UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY:                     STACY AND WITBECK, INC.:   
 
By: _________________________________                By: ________________________  
        Carolyn M. Gonot, Executive Director            Date 
                                            > $100,000 

By: _________________________________                Date:       
        D. Eddy Cumins, Chief Operating Officer                Date 
                                            < $100,000 

By:_________________________________                                               
             David Hancock, Director of Asset Management      Date  
                                             < $50,000 



  

 

 

  

  

 

Memo for File 

In-Scope Determination 

 

Contract:  On-call Maintenance Contract, Contract # 16-1846TP, Task Order #87____  

 

I have evaluated the content of this task order and also the scope of work described 
in the master task ordering contract and have made the determination that this Task 
Order # _87_____ is within the scope of work contemplated and described by the 
contracting parties when they executed the original master task ordering contract.  

 

Signed: 

 

     Date _______8/15/2019_____ 

D. Eddy Cumins, COO 

Or  

David Hancock, Director  



   

 

 
1958 West North Temple St. 

Salt Lake City, UT  84116 
t: 801-666-7840   f: 801-432-7489 

 

      

 

June 02, 2019   OCS 

 

Mr. David Hancock 

Utah Transit Authority 

669 West 200 South 

Salt Lake City, UT  84104 

 

Reference: On-Call Maintenance Contract 

  Contract No.: 16-1846TP 

 

Subject: 19-622 – UDOT Trax Queue Cutter Project  

 

Dear Dave: 

 

Attached please find our pricing proposal to adjust preemption at five UTA Trax grade 

crossing locations; Redwood Road (UDOT PIN 15276), Winchester (UDOT PIN 15277), 

3900 South Millcreek (UDOT PIN 15276), 7200 South 250 W (UDOT PIN 15276), 3300 South 

200 (UDOT PIN 15276). This project is in reference to the UDOT Preemption project PINs: 

15276, and 15277 

 

The scope of work includes labor, equipment and materials, including; relays bases, 

arrestors, terminal blocks wiring necessary to adjust preemption at the mentioned 

locations. 

  
Exclusions: 

• Insurance deductibles 

• Buy America Certification 

• Railroad flagging 

• Exclude fiber optic splicing work 

  

Clarifications:  

• Please see detailed list of each bid item below 

• The unit costs for each bid item includes the costs of insurance, bond, and risk at 

the agreed upon rates. 

• We have not included any design/engineering costs for this scope. If additional 

design is required beyond what was furnished by UTA, will need to be priced 

separately. 

• The scope of work is inclusive of only the items and scope that are listed below. 

Any other items of work or changes to the below scope will need to be repriced. 

• UTA shall provide all VHLC and ELIX program changes. Stacy and Witbeck and 

RMSS shall make field changes utilizing the programs. 



 

 
1958 West North Temple St. 

Salt Lake City, UT  84116 
t: 801-666-7840   f: 801-432-7489 

 

• All fiber patch panels and fiber pathways are fully functional; Stacy and Witbeck 

and RMSS make no provisions for fiber optic material, labor, communications 

configuration, or testing. 

• UTA shall supply all engineering, programming and design. 

• UDOT, or its subcontractors shall provide all conduit and cable shall be provided 

to existing or new junction boxes with 50’slack loops. 

• UTA to coordinate any cutover activities with UDOT. 

• UTA to provide as-in-service FrontRunner drawings for project to minimize impacts 

to PTC. 

• Stacy and Witbeck and RMSS shall provide field print copy markups. UTA will 

compile to create as-built drawings. 

• Work is inclusive of the drawings provided for the track and cable plans provided 

on box for Winchester Ave, Redwood Road, 7200 South, 3900 South, and 3300 

South.  

o https://stacywitbeck.box.com/s/sq6e2emlpn1dafxqmnbrvysk0e65o800 

• We shall preserve the cantilevers and overhead camera brackets for future use 

by UTA. 

 

 

Summary of Costs and Scope for each item: 
 
Bid Item 1000 – Field Engineering & Project Controls - 1.00 LS - Total of $1,709.00 - This bid 

item includes Stacy and Witbeck field support from field engineer to manage 

construction. The field engineer will also perform pre-task planning and coordination 

with UTA. This item also includes office manager time for payroll and accounts payable. 

 

Bid Item 1500 – Traffic and Pedestrian Control - 1.00 LS - Total of $3,815.00 - This bid item 

includes the permit, creating stamped traffic control drawings, and labor, materials, 

and equipment to setup traffic control at 3300 South the remove the cantilever arms. 

 

Bid Item 10000 – Mobilization - 1.00 LS - Total of $1,340.00 - This bid item includes 

mobilizing an excavator, truck, trailers and other equipment to 3300 South to remove 

and reconstruct the sidewalk at 3300 South for the cantilever work. 

 
Bid Item 20000 – Winchester Ave – PIN 15277 - 1.00 LS - Total of $13,263.00 - This bid item 

includes the cost to labor, specialty tools and equipment to wire, terminate, tag 

necessary equipment to gain 12 second TCR preemption at Winchester Ave. Materials 

include: relays, bases arrestors, terminal blocks, and terminating supplies. We will assist 

UTA with testing support. 

 

Bid Item 30000 – Redwood Road - PIN 15276 - 1.00 LS - Total of $7,286.00 - This bid item 

includes the cost to labor, specialty tools and equipment to wire, terminate, tag 

necessary equipment to gain 14 second TCR preemption at redwood Road. Materials 

include: relays, bases, arrestors, terminal blocks, and terminating supplies. We will assist 

UTA with testing support. 

 



   

 

 
1958 West North Temple St. 

Salt Lake City, UT  84116 
t: 801-666-7840   f: 801-432-7489 

 

Bid Item 40000 – 7200 South – PIN 15276 - 1.00 LS - Total of $84,811.00 - This bid item 

includes the cost to labor, specialty tools and equipment to wire, terminate, tag 

necessary equipment to gain 13 second TCR preemption at 7200 South. Scope of work 

includes materials and changes at 7500 South and 8975CC: 8997CC, and 9015CC 

coupler cases.  

We will provide materials including fiber modems, AFTAC cards, VLP and ACP cards, 

RS232s, coupler, relays, bases arrestors, terminal blocks, and terminating supplies. We will 

assist UTA with testing support. 

 

Bid Item 50000 – 3900 South – PIN 15276- 1.00 LS - Total of $59,931.00 - This bid item 

includes materials and changes at Fireclay and Central Ave locations.  Bid item also 

includes the cost to labor, specialty tools and equipment to wire, terminate, tag 

necessary equipment to gain 11 second TCR preemption at 3900 South. We will assist 

UTA with testing support. 

We will provide materials including AFTAC cards, VLP and ACP cards, coupler, relays, 

bases arrestors, terminal blocks, and terminating supplies. We will assist UTA with testing 

support. 

 
Bid Item 60000 – 3300 South - PIN 15276- 1.00 LS - Total of $77,971.00 - This bid item 

includes the cost to labor, specialty tools and equipment to wire, terminate, tag 

necessary equipment to gain 13 second TCR preemption at 3300 South. Scope of work 

includes materials and changes at 9445CC, 9469CC, 9470CC coupler cases and 

Gregson Ave Locations.  

We will provide materials including fiber modems, AFTAC cards, VLP and ACP cards, 

RS232s, coupler, relays, bases arrestors, terminal blocks, and terminating supplies. We will 

assist UTA with testing support. 

 
Bid Item 70000 – 3300 South Cantilevers - 1.00 LS - Total of $17,615.00 - This bid item 

includes the necessary labor and equipment to remove the overhead cantilevers on 

the north and south side of 3300 South Grade Crossing. The cantilevers will be removed 

and transported to UTA’s Beck Street Yard. We will cut all cables and fibers at the base 

of the cantilevers. We will also disconnect the power to the pole on the south side of 

the grade crossing (120V). This bid item also includes the demolition to 1’ below top of 

sidewalk elevation of the existing foundation. With the foundations 1’ below top of 

existing sidewalk we will pour back a 4” sidewalk over the foundation. 
 
100000 - Fee (5.25%) - 1.00 LS - Total of $14,056.00 - This is the agreed to CMGC fee that 

is part of the new On Call Services Contract on the above bid items. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
1958 West North Temple St. 

Salt Lake City, UT  84116 
t: 801-666-7840   f: 801-432-7489 

 

 

The total price for this scope of work is $281,797.00 If you have any questions, please 

contact me.  

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Stacy and Witbeck, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

Brian Dagsland 

Project Manager 



07/03/2019 14:05

19-622 UDOT TRAX Queue Cutter Projects

*** Brian Dagsland, BD    BID TOTALS

Biditem Description Quantity Units Unit Price  Bid Total

1

1000 Field Engineering & Project Controls 1.000 LS 1,709.00 1,709.00

5000 Traffic & Pedestrian Control 1.000 LS 3,815.00 3,815.00

10000 Mobilization 1.000 LS 1,340.00 1,340.00

20000 Winchester Ave 1.000 LS 13,263.00 13,263.00

30000 Redwood Road 1.000 LS 7,286.00 7,286.00

40000 7200 South 1.000 LS 84,811.00 84,811.00

50000 3900 South 1.000 LS 59,931.00 59,931.00

60000 3300 South 1.000 LS 77,971.00 77,971.00

70000 3300 South Cantilevers 1.000 LS 17,615.00 17,615.00

Subtotal $267,741.00

100000 Fee (5.25%) 1.000 LS 14,056.00 14,056.00

Bid Total ========> $281,797.00



Task #87 Queue Cutters

Price Analysis UTA ICE SWI Price Difference Pecentage

3300 S 115,222.00 100,604.00 14,618.01   

3900 S 52,871.00   63,077.00   (10,206.00) 

Redwood Rd 35,140.00   7,669.00      27,471.01   

7200 S 132,290.00 89,264.02   43,025.98   

Winchester St 19,126.00   13,959.00   5,167.00     

Field Engineering* 1,799.00      (1,799.00)   

Traffic Control* 4,015.00      (4,015.00)   

Mobilization* 1,410.00      (1,410.00)   

354,649.00 281,797.00 72,852.00   25.85%

* Included in UTA ICE by location

Stacy and Witbeck's price is lower than ICE by $72,852 or 25.85%

UTA determines the price to be fair and reasonable.

UDOT will reimburse UTA for these project costs per agreement

#199096 CID No. 54972 PIN 15276



Department* Existing Contract? New Contract Number

Board Review Date*
Document Type*
Requisition #

Please upload the necessary
documents here

Contract Title*

Contractor Name*

Description / Purpose*

Contract Administrator* Project Manager*
Base Contract Effective Dates* *

Contract Type* Procurement Method*
Number of Responding Firms Value of Next Lowest Bidder

Base Contract Term (Months)*
Contract Options (Months)*

Extension

Supply Chain Yes 19-03124

Contract Section
Procurement

09/11/2019

Pre-Procurement

Original

7075

Requisition.pdf 193.54KB

Electronic Fare Collection Reader Replacement

TBD

UTA needs to procure a new source for its electronic fare readers. This requisition
request is to authorize an RFP to find a fare reader supplier that will work with our
current in-house fare system. 

This request is the current best case estimate to fund the replacement of all
current readers. Per discussions with Accounting, this project will be financed by a
leasing arrangement after the RFP selects a vendor. The total estimate is between
$5 and $7 million dollars. Due to the significant duplication of costs to change
vendors this contract will begin once executed and continue for 10 years to allow
for future purchases and maintenance.

The need to find an alternative source for the electronic fare readers includes:
• UTA desires to validate NFC media used by its contract partners and FarePay
customers
• Current reader design is 12 years old and has been in operation for 10 years.
• There are no support channels for spare parts or readers available to UTA.
(Readers, parts for readers and part components are no longer manufactured)
• UTA reader spare pool is decreasing as the readers age.
• There are no new readers available to support planned service expansion.
• The technology to validate fares has changed and now includes the need to
validate fares from digital ids and the UTA GoRide mobile app.

Postell, Patricia Snyder, David

Beginning

11/1/2019
Ending

10/31/2029
Goods RFP (Best-value)

12
0 0

Option to Renew?* Yes

No

Start Date End Date

Financial Section
Procurement



Existing Contract Value Amendment Amount New/total Contract Value*

Qty Unit Price Annual/One-Time Value

Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?*
Attachment Is the amount an estimate?*

How was the estimate
calculated?*

Account Code*

Capital Project Code

Funding Source*
Budgeted?*

Budget amount*
Will this contract require support from another department?*
Is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?*
Has the Qualified Health Insurance Certificate been verified?*

1)Legal/Compliance Review*
2)Accounting Approval Needed?* 2)Accounting Review*
3)Risk Approval Needed?*
4)IT Approval Needed?*
5)Add Additional Approval?*
6)Manager/Program Manager* 7)Dir, Sr. Mgr, or RGM*

8)Chief* 9)Executive Director*

*Board Approval Required* Board Approval Date

$ $ 5,000,000.00$
$ 5,000,000.00$

One-time Recurring

Yes No

Based on price of previous purchases.

40-
2005.6891
2 ICI005

Local
Yes

No

5,000,000.00$

Yes No

Yes No N/A

Yes No N/A

Approval Section
Postell, Patricia

Yes No Steele, Bryan

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Snyder, David Harmuth, Daniel A

Harmuth, Daniel A Gonot, Carolyn

Print this page


	2019-0911 Agenda_Board Meeting
	Sep 19 safety poster
	2019-0821 Minutes_Board Meeting_OPEN_UNAPPROVED
	R2019-09-01 Appointment of Chief Safety Officer
	R2019-09-02 Approving 2019 Budget Amendment 4
	R2019-09-02 Exhibit A-2019 Budget Amendment 4_board packet
	R2019-09-02 Information - 2019 Budget Amendment 4

	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-BofA Securities
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-BofA Securities_2Contract
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-BofA Securities_3Pricing

	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-Wells Fargo
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-Wells Fargo_2Contract
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-Wells Fargo_3Pricing

	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-JP Morgan
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-JP Morgan_2Contract
	2019-0911 Contract-Bond Underwriters-JP Morgan_3Pricing

	2019-0911 Contract-Comprehensive Transportation Plan-RLS Assoc
	2019-0911 Contract-Comprehensive Transportation Plan-RLS Assoc_2Contract

	2019-0911 Contract-Vendor Managed Shop Supply-Grainger
	2019-0911 Contract-Vendor Managed Shop Supply-Grainger_2Contract

	2019-0911 Change Order-SWI On-Call Maint #87-Queue Cutter
	2019-0911 Change Order-SWI On-Call Maint #87-Queue Cutter_2Contract
	2019-0911 Change Order-SWI On-Call Maint #87-Queue Cutter_4Price Analysis

	2019-0911 Pre-Procurement-EFC Reader Replacement



